
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION - Pastor Michael Curtis, Second Baptist Church 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Council Work Session held 

February 6, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.   
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 
held February 13, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the joint meeting between City 
Council and the Delaware City School Board held February 13, 2017, as 
recorded and transcribed.   
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the motion summaries for the Finance Committee 

meetings held on August 29, 2016 and September 19, 2016. 
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Airport Commission  

Meeting held on August 25, 2016. 
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Parking and Safety 

Meeting held on November 21, 2016.  
D. Acceptance of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Meeting 

held on January 17, 2017.  
E. Resolution No. 17-07, a resolution appointing/reappointing 

members to various Boards, Commissions, and/or Committees, 
and specifying the term of the appointments.  

F. Resolution No. 17-08, a resolution appointing a member to the 
Main Street Delaware Board, and specifying the term of the 
appointment.  

G. Resolution No. 17-09, a resolution amending Resolution No. 15-57, 
appointing Council Members to various Committees, Commissions, 
and/or Boards.  

H. Resolution No. 17-10, a resolution determining the video service 
provider fee to be paid by a video service provider offering video 



2 
 

service in the City pursuant to a state authorization, and giving 
notice to the provider (Frontier Communications) of the provider 
fee.  

I. Resolution No. 17-11, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
sign an agreement regarding the Police Department to use County 
vehicles for purposes of conducting drug investigations.  

J. Resolution No. 17-12, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
sign an agreement regarding transfer of ownership of early warning 
system controller, base radio, and radio frequency.  

K. Resolution No. 17-13, a resolution repealing Resolution No. 12-42 
authorizing the establishment of a handicapped parking space 
located in front of 216 North Union Street.  

L. Establish March 13, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. as a date and time for 
public comment and second reading of Resolution No. 17-14, a 
resolution authorizing the installation of certain traffic control 
signage to establish a No Parking Anytime Zone on the south side 
of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive from 105 feet west of 
Thistle Drive to 95 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and 
Buehler Drive intersection and the extension of the No Parking 
Here to Corner Zone on the north side of Lexington Boulevard and 
Buehler Drive to 40 feet west of Thistle Drive and 25 feet southeast 
of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection.  

M. Establish March 13, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-11, an 
ordinance amending sections 913.03(a) and 913.14 of Chapter 913 
of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Delaware, Ohio 
establishing Tap Fees and Water Rates and Repealing existing 
Sections 913(a) and 913.14 and Ordinance No. 17-12, an 
ordinance amending the Refuse Collection and Utility Services 
portions of the Schedule of Fees and Services Charges.  

    
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. CONSIDERATION OF NEW LIQUOR PERMITS 

A.  ISSA Full Up LLC, DBA Clark Station, 612 Sandusky Street, Delaware, 
OH 43015. Permit Class: C1 and C2 

 
9. PRESENTATIONS 

A.  Proclamation presentation to The Conference Champion Dempsey 
Middle School Girls Basketball Team 

B. 2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update – Bill Ferrigno, 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 



3 
 

 
10. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 16-110, an ordinance amending 

Section 737.01 of the City of Delaware’s Codified Ordinances, Relating to 
Circuses (Council Permission, License, Bond and Insurance Required). 

 
11.  7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 17-

02, an ordinance amending Section 505.23 of the City of Delaware’s 
Codified Ordinances, relating to wild and exotic animals.  

 
12. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 17-04, an ordinance approving the 

naming of the access road extending from Crystal Petal Drive to Cheshire 
Road and aligned parallel to Columbus Pike to Kingman Hill Drive.  

 
13. 7:45 p.m. PUBLIC COMMENT AND SECOND READING of Resolution No. 

17-06, a resolution accepting the Downtown Parking Study, Dated 
February 6, 2017 submitted by MKSK Consultants.  

 
14. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-05, an ordinance approving a 

Combined Preliminary and Final development plan for Ohio Wesleyan 
University for an Honors House on approximately 0.78 acres located at 
81 Oak Hill Avenue zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) 
and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District). 

 
15. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-06, an ordinance approving a 

Final Development Plan for Ohio Wesleyan University for a Phase 3 Small 
Living Unit (SLU) on approximately 1.373 acres located on the north side 
of Rowland Avenue between South Washington Street and South Liberty 
Street on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District). 

 
16. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-07, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat for Homerock, LLC for Braumiller Woods Section 3 
consisting of 38 single family lots on approximately 13.408 acres zoned 
R-2 (One Family Residential District) and located on Colony Ridge Drive 
and Buena Park Drive.  

 
17. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-14, a resolution authorizing the 

installation of certain traffic control signage to establish a No Parking 
Anytime Zone on the south side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler 
Drive from 105 feet west of Thistle Drive to 95 feet southeast of the 
Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection and the extension of 
the No Parking Here to Corner Zone on the north side of Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive to 40 feet west of Thistle Drive and 25 feet 
southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection.  



4 
 

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-15, a resolution adopting the 

proposed changes to the user fees for Hidden Valley Golf Course. 
 
19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-08, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 20.445 acres of land, more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Delaware Development Plan (Coughlin’s Crossing) annexation by 
Michael R. Shade, Agent for the Petitioners.  

 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-09, an ordinance accepting the 

annexation of 1.7023 acres of land, more or less, description and map 
are attached hereto as exhibits “A” and “B” for the annexation known as 
the Delaware Development Plan (Coughlin’s Crossing Right-of-Way) 
annexation by Michael R. Shade, Agent for the Petitioners. 

 
21. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-10, an ordinance providing for the 

issuance and sale of notes in the maximum aggregate principal amount 
of $11,015,000 in anticipation of the issuance of bonds, for the purpose 
of paying the costs of various public infrastructure improvements, 
together with all related appurtenances thereto, and declaring an 
emergency.  

 
22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-11, an ordinance amending 

sections 913.03(a) and 913.14 of Chapter 913 of the Codified Ordinances 
of the City of Delaware, Ohio establishing Tap Fees and Water Rates and 
Repealing existing Sections 913(a) and 913.14.  

 
23 CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-12, an ordinance amending the 

Refuse Collection and Utility Services portions of the Schedule of Fees 
and Services Charges.  

 
24.  EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 

(G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential 
by State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public 
purpose and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information 
related to a request for economic development assistance. 

 
25. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
26. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
27. ADJOURNMENT 















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 2/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-07 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING/REAPPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE 
TERM OF THE APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-07 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING/REAPPOINTING 
MEMBERS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, 
AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM 
OF THE APPOINTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointments are hereby made: 
 
1. Planning Commission – Jim Halter-Reappointment (Term December 

31, 2016 – December 31, 2019) 
2. Planning Commission -  Dean Prall - Reappointment (Term December 

31, 2016 – December 31, 2019) 
3. Historic Preservation Commission – Mark Hatten – Reappointment 

(Term December 31, 2016 – December 31, 2019) 
4. Historic Preservation Commission - Erinn Nicley- Reappointment 

(Term December 31, 2016 – December 31, 2019) 
5. Shade Tree Commission – Paul Olen - Reappointment (Term January 

31, 2017 – January 31, 2020) 
6. Shade Tree Commission - Rebecca Wood-Meek - Reappointment 

(Term January 31, 2017 – January 31, 2020) 
7. Shade Tree Commission - Thomas Wolber - Reappointment (Term 

January 31, 2017 – January 31, 2020)  
8. Airport Commission – Walt Gaub - Reappointment (Term December 

31, 2016 – December 31, 2019) 
9. Sister City Advisory Board – Rand Guebert – Reappointment  (Term 

January 1, 2017 – January 1, 2020) 
10.  Sister City Advisory Board - Rita Selle Grider - Reappointment (Term 

January 1, 2017 – January 1, 2020) 
11. Records Commission – Michele Kohler - Appointment 
 
SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 



PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 2/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-08 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE MAIN STREET DELAWARE 
BOARD, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE APPOINTMENT. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



 RESOLUTION NO. 17-08 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE MAIN 
STREET DELAWARE BOARD, AND SPECIFYING THE 
TERM OF THE APPOINTMENT. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor has the responsibility to appoint one Director to the 

Board of Directors, according to Article 6, of the Code of Regulations of Main 
Street Delaware, Inc.; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointment. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Delaware 
that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointment is hereby made: 
 
1. Elaine McCloskey, City Clerk – Replacement for  Councilmember 

Chris Jones as the Main Street Delaware Representative – Term ends 
December 31, 2017.  

 
SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM G DATE: 2/27/207 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-09 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 15-57, APPOINTING COUNCIL 
MEMBERS TO VARIOUS COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR BOARDS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
N/A 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Mayoral appointments are required to be confirmed by City Council 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 



ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



 RESOLUTION NO.  17-09 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 15-57, 
APPOINTING COUNCIL MEMBERS TO VARIOUS 
COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR BOARDS. 

 
WHEREAS, Council Members are to be appointed to serve on various 

Committees, Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and 
confirmed by Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor made Council appointments and Council has 
confirmed said appointments; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Members of Council authorize the amendments 

to the committee assignments detailed below.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 
 SECTION 1.   The following Council appointments are hereby amended: 

 
 1. George Hellinger, At Large  

 Moving from Parking and Safety Committee to Planning Commission 
  

 2. Lisa Keller, Second Ward 
  Moving from Planning Commission to Parking and Safety Committee 

Interim member of Finance Committee for Councilmember Joe 
DiGenova, as needed 

  
 SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM H DATE: 2/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-10 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE VIDEO SERVICE PROVIDER FEE TO BE 
PAID BY A VIDEO SERVICE PROVIDER OFFERING VIDEO SERVICE IN THE 
CITY PURSUANT TO A STATE AUTHORIZATION, AND GIVING NOTICE TO THE 
PROVIDER (FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS) OF THE PROVIDER FEE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 1332.32, a video service provider that 
is providing service in the City pursuant to a State issued video service 
authorization can be required to pay the City a video service provider fee, based 
on a percentage of the provider’s gross revenues derived from service in the 
City, not to exceed 5%; and 
 
All video service providers providing service within the City of Delaware, in 
accordance with the requirements of Ohio Revised Code Section 1332.32, shall 
pay Video Service Provider Fees in the amount of 5% of gross revenues received 
from providing video service in the City, which shall include advertising 
revenues.  The fee shall be paid quarterly, no later than sixty days after the end 
of each calendar quarter. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
In order to provide timely notice to a video service provider of the fee, it is 
necessary now for City Council to determine that the percentage of gross 
revenues on which the fee will be paid is five percent (5%) and that advertising 



revenues shall be included in the base of gross revenues on which the fee is 
paid, and hereby authorizes notice of the fee to a video service provider, 
Frontier Communications upon passage of this resolution. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
5% fee collection 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
No change, this is the rate currently charged to Time Warner Cable and WOW, 
Inc. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Letter from Frontier Communications 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-10 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE VIDEO SERVICE 
PROVIDER FEE TO BE PAID BY A VIDEO SERVICE 
PROVIDER OFFERING VIDEO SERVICE IN THE CITY 
PURSUANT TO A STATE AUTHORIZATION, AND 
GIVING NOTICE TO THE PROVIDER (FRONTIER 
COMMUNICATIONS) OF THE PROVIDER FEE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 1332.32, a video 
service provider that is providing service in the City pursuant to a State issued 
video service authorization can be required to pay the City a video service 
provider fee, based on a percentage of the provider’s gross revenues derived from 
service in the City, not to exceed 5%; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s existing non-exclusive Franchise Agreement with 
Time Warner Cable and WOW, Inc. includes a 5% fee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, applying the same fee to all providers is equitable and will 
minimize the negative financial impact on the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to provide timely notice to a video service provider of 
the fee, it is necessary now for City Council to determine that the percentage of 
gross revenues on which the fee will be paid is five percent (5%) and that 
advertising revenues shall be included in the base of gross revenues on which the 
fee is paid, and hereby authorizes notice of the fee to a video service provider, 
Frontier Communications upon passage of this ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio that: 
 
 SECTION 1. All video service providers providing service within the City of 
Delaware, in accordance with the requirements of Ohio Revised Code Section 
1332.32, shall pay Video Service Provider Fees in the amount of 5% of gross 
revenues received from providing video service in the City, which shall include 
advertising revenues.  The fee shall be paid quarterly, no later than sixty days 
after the end of each calendar quarter. 
 
 SECTION 2. The City will provide notice to video service providers of this 
fee. 
 
 SECTION 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into any 
required franchise agreements necessary to effectuate the 5% fee. 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 









  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM I DATE: 2/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-11 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT TO USE COUNTY VEHICLES FOR 
PURPOSES OF CONDUCTING DRUG INVESTIGATIONS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware Police Department has been a member of the Delaware 
County Drug Task force since its inception.  As such, Delaware Police 
Department members assigned to the task force have regularly driven Delaware 
County owned vehicles in pursuit of the mission of the drug task force.   The 
Delaware County Sheriff’s Office, the coordinating agency of the drug task force, 
has also regularly allowed Delaware Police Department officers not assigned to 
the drug task force to use task force vehicles for the purposes of investigating 
cases.  This has been an informal arrangement, and this agreement serves to 
formalize and define the responsibilities of the cooperative effort.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This resolution is necessary to allow for the continued use of drug task force 
vehicles by Delaware Police Department officers.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



No cost to the city, although certain liabilities are assumed.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Copy of Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-11 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT REGARDING THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT TO USE COUNTY VEHICLES FOR 
PURPOSES OF CONDUCTING DRUG 
INVESTIGATIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware partners with the Delaware County 

Sheriff’s Office (D.C.S.O.) on a regular basis to conduct drug investigations; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the D.C.S.O. allows the police department to use their 

unmarked vehicles for the purposes of conducting drug investigations.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the City of Delaware hereby agrees to the terms of the 
intergovernmental agreement and authorizes the city manager to sign such 
agreement to allow the police department to continue to use D.C.S.O. vehicles. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



Intergovernmental Agreement: 
 Use of Vehicles 

Page 1 of  4 
 

Section 1: Parties to the Agreement 

This Agreement is made and entered into this ________ day of    , 2015 by and 
between the Delaware County Sheriff, 149 North Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015 
and the Delaware County Board of  Commissioners, 101 North Sandusky Street, Delaware, 
Ohio 43015 (collectively, the “County”), and the City of  Delaware, 1 South Sandusky 
Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015 (the “City”), (hereinafter referred to individually as “Party” 
or collectively as the “Parties”). 

Section 2: Purpose 

This Agreement is authorized by sections 9.482, 307.846, and 307.15, et seq., of  the 
Revised Code. The City desires to enter into an agreement with the County that allows 
Delaware County Sheriff  to lend vehicles to the City, for the purpose of  conducting drug 
investigations, and the County is willing and able to provide such services.  

Section 3: Division of Responsibilities 

The County will allow City to use vehicles assigned to the Sheriff ’s Office. City is solely 
responsible for insurance, repairs, and any and all non-routine costs that are either related 
or incidental to its use of  the vehicles provided to it by County. In the event the City uses 
the same vehicle for 30 or more consecutive days, then it shall also be responsible for the 
routine maintenance of  the vehicle. 

Section 4: Compensation 

The County and City acknowledge and agree that the service being provided is a proactive 
cooperative law enforcement inoperative venture.  As such Parties agree that in the spirit of  
mutual aid and furtherance of  justice no fees shall be incurred.   

Section 5: Records 

The Parties agree that each shall maintain their respective public records concerning the 
services provided under this Agreement, pursuant to the laws of the State of Ohio 
pertaining to public records. 
 
Section 6: Term 

This Agreement shall take immediate effect upon approval by all Parties hereto and shall 
continue in full force and effect for one (1) year, whereupon the Parties mutually agree to 
review this Agreement for consideration of  renewal. This Agreement may only be 
amended in writing with the mutual consent and agreement of  the Parties. Either party 
may terminate this Contract at any time and for any reason by giving at least thirty (30) 
days advance notice, in writing, to the other.   



Intergovernmental Agreement: 
 Use of Vehicles 

Page 2 of  4 
 

Section 7: Legal Contingencies  

In the event a change in law, whether by statute, judicial determination, or administrative 
action, affects this Agreement or the ability of  the Parties to enter into, or continue to 
operate pursuant to, this Agreement, the Parties mutually agree to immediately institute a 
review of  this Agreement. The Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to address any 
necessary modifications to this Agreement, to the extent permitted by applicable law. 

Section 8: Personnel 

The Parties each agree to maintain control over their respective personnel, and this 
Agreement shall not be construed to alter the employment relationship each Party has with 
its respective personnel. Each Party shall be responsible for the compensation, benefits, and 
liabilities of  its respective personnel and hereby agrees to release the other Party from any 
responsibility therefor.  In no event shall County’s employees be considered employees of  
the City within the meaning or application of  any federal, state or local laws or regulations 
and vice versa. 

Section 9: Equipment and Facilities  

Each Party to this Agreement shall be responsible for providing any additional equipment 
and facilities required as a result of  this agreement. In no way shall this Agreement be 
construed to require the sale or donation of  equipment under the ownership and control of  
either Party of  this Agreement. 

Section 10: Insurance and Liability 

Each Party shall, for the life of  this Agreement, maintain comprehensive general liability 
insurance coverage, with minimum limits in the amount of  $1,000,000.00 each occurrence 
or equivalent and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate, and shall cause the other Party to be 
named as an additional insured on any applicable insurance policies. 

Auto/Vehicle Liability Insurance covering all owned, leased, non-owned, and/or hired 
vehicles used in providing the Services, used in connection with the Services, and/or 
otherwise for the County with coverage in an amount equal to that required by law and 
covering all sums which the City may or shall become legally obligated to pay as damages, 
but in an amount providing for minimum coverage of  at least three hundred thousand 
dollars ($300,000.00) (Combined Single Limit) or, one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00) per person and three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00) per accident for 
bodily injury and one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) per accident for property 
damage or more as may be required for particular vehicles or particular uses of  vehicles as 
required by applicable law. 

The City acknowledges that the availability of  vehicles will be based on the needs of  the 
Sheriff ’s Office. As a condition of  this Agreement, the City agrees to release the County 
from any liability or costs due to vehicles being unavailable to the City.  



Intergovernmental Agreement: 
 Use of Vehicles 

Page 3 of  4 
 

The City and County further agree, unless prohibited by the applicable insurance contracts, 
that whenever the vehicle is being used by City employees while engaged in activities 
directly related to the Drug Task Force, the County’s insurance policy shall be primary. In 
all other cases where a City employee operates a County vehicle, City agrees that its 
insurance policy shall be primary.  

Section 11: Miscellaneous Terms & Conditions  

11.1. Entire Agreement: This Agreement shall constitute the entire understanding and 
agreement between the Parties and shall supersede all prior understandings and 
agreements relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall not be 
assigned. 

11.2. Governing Law and Disputes: This Agreement shall be governed by and 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of  the State of  Ohio. The Parties shall 
make good faith efforts to directly negotiate any disputes arising from this 
Agreement. If  direct negotiations shall fail, the Parties agree to mediate the dispute 
with a mediator chosen by agreement between the Parties. If  mediation shall fail, 
any and all legal disputes arising from this Agreement may only be filed in and 
heard before the courts of  Delaware County, Ohio. 

11.3. Headings: The subject headings of  the Sections and Subsections in this 
Agreement are included for purposes of  convenience only and shall not affect the 
construction or interpretation of  any of  its provisions. This Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been drafted by both Parties and no purposes of  interpretation 
shall be made to the contrary.  

11.4. Waivers: No waiver of  breach of  any provision of  this Agreement shall in any 
way constitute a waiver of  any prior, concurrent, subsequent, or future breach of  
this Agreement or any other provision hereof. No term or provision of  this 
Agreement shall be deemed waived, and no breach excused, unless such a waiver 
or consent is expressly made in writing and signed by the party claimed to have 
waived or consented. Such waiver shall not constitute and shall not in any way be 
interpreted as a waiver of  any other term or provision or future breach unless said 
waiver expressly states an intention to waive another specific term or provision or 
future breach. 

11.5. Severability: If  any item, condition, portion, or section of  this Agreement or the 
application thereof  to any person, premises, or circumstance shall to any extent, be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder hereof  and the application of  
such term, condition, provision, or section to persons, premises, or circumstances 
other than those as to whom it shall be held invalid or unenforceable shall not be 
affected thereby, and this Agreement and all the terms, conditions, provisions, or 
sections hereof  shall, in all other respects, continue in full force and effect.  

 



Intergovernmental Agreement: 
 Use of Vehicles 

Page 4 of  4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement.  

Delaware County Sheriff’s Office 
 
_______________________________ 
Russell Martin, Sheriff 

 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 
 

Delaware County Board of 
Commissioners 
 
By: 
 
 ________________________ 
Gary Merrell, President 
              
________________________ 
Barb Lewis, Commissioner 
 
________________________ 
Jeff Benton, Commissioner   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 

City of Delaware, Ohio 
 
______________________________ 
Tom Homan 
City Manager 
 
 

 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Carol O’Brien    
Delaware County Prosecuting 
Attorney 
 

 
 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 

 

NO FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION REQUIRED (RC 5705.41(D)): 

No actual funds are to be exchanged between the Parties in connection with this 
Agreement.  No Fiscal Officer’s Certification is required. 



Intergovernmental Agreement: 
 Use of Vehicles 

Page 5 of  4 
 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM J DATE: 2/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-12 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN  AGREEMENT 
REGARDING TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF EARLY WARNING SYSTEM 
CONTROLLER, BASE RADIO AND RADIO FREQUENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware has owned and operated an early warning system for many 
years.  When consolidation of dispatching services occurred, the City maintained 
ownership of the early warning system, but the physical location and activation 
of the system moved to 10 Court St., the Delaware County Emergency 
Communication Center.  Over the years, other jurisdictions have asked to use 
the activation signal of the City’s early warning system to activate their own 
siren.  As the activation network spread, the Delaware County Office of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management began to take a coordinating 
role in managing the agreements needed to share the activation signal, as well 
as assisting the Delaware County Emergency Communication center with the 
operational policy of the system. 
 
Due to this expansion, all parties involved agree that transferring ownership of 
the activation portion of the City’s system would be in the best interest of all 
users and potential users of the system. The transfer would place ownership and 
control under the EMA, which would streamline the approval process for 
jurisdictions that want to come onto the system.   
 



The City will still own and maintain our seven siren sites, and be responsible for 
any maintenance and upkeep of those sites.  This agreement only involves the 
activation portion of the system. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This resolution is necessary to allow for the transfer of the early warning system 
activation system to EMA. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
No cost to the city.  EMA will take over operation and maintenance of the 
activation portion of the system.  The city will continue to own and maintain our 
siren sites.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Copy of Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-12 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN AN  AGREEMENT REGARDING TRANSFER 
OF OWNERSHIP OF EARLY WARNING SYSTEM 
CONTROLLER, BASE RADIO AND RADIO 
FREQUENCY  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware owns the early warning system that is 

currently used by the City as well as several other jurisdictions in Delaware 
County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Delaware County Office of Homeland Security and 

Emergency Management (EMA) has been overseeing the coordination of the 
countywide expansion of the system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Delaware County Office of Homeland Security and 

Emergency Management agrees to provide early warning system activation at 
no cost. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That the City of Delaware hereby agrees to transfer 
ownership of the controller, base radio and radio frequency to EMA. 

 
SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

passage. 
   

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: CONSENT ITEM K DATE: 02/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-13 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 12-42 AUTHORIZING THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE LOCATED IN FRONT 
OF 216 NORTH UNION STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
In 2012, the resident at 216 N. Union St. requested that the City install a 
handicap parking space in front of his residence due to his medical condition, 
and the fact that he had no suitable off street parking.  The space was authorized 
by resolution 12-42.  Since that time, the original requester has moved and the 
current resident has requested that the handicap designation be eliminated.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is needed to repeal the resolution establishing the handicap space.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Parking and Safety; approval by 3-0 vote. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
None 
 
POLICY CHANGES:  
None 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
Chief Bruce Pijanowski 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Resolution 12-42 
Email Request 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-13 
 

A RESOLUTION REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 12-42 
AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 
HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE LOCATED IN FRONT 
OF 216 NORTH UNION STREET. 

 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee previously approved the 

establishment of a handicapped parking space in front of 216 North Union 
Street to assist the resident of the home who needed handicapped parking; and 

 
WHEREAS, that resident no longer needs handicapped parking at that 

address because the resident has moved.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1: The previously established handicapped parking space in 
front of 216 North Union Street shall be removed.   

 
SECTION 2: That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 

PASSED:     _____________________, 2017  YEAS ____     NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: __________________________     ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 
February 9, 2017 

 

Prepared by William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

Executive Summary 
 
The City of Delaware has provided its residents with a publically managed solid waste collection service since first being 
introduced in 1951.  During the 65 years of operations, many aspects of solid waste management have changed 
including the closure of two locally owned landfills, modernization of equipment to semi-automated tip cart collection, 
and expansion of refuse operations to include both curbside yard waste and recycling collection.   State and federal 
regulations now mandate strict and costly requirements in the management of solid waste disposal, as well as the 
perpetual monitoring of closed landfills for water quality degradation and explosive gas migration.  Though landfills are 
no longer operated within the city, the nearby availability of the county owned waste transfer facility allows for the 
continued provision of economical collection services.     
 
Today, the city continues to provide high quality and efficient solid waste collection with a fleet of eleven collection 
vehicles and fourteen staff members.  Curbside residential refuse, yard waste and recycling collection are provided on 
weekdays to nearly 39,000 residents at a monthly rate that has not been adjusted since 2011.  While many area 
communities subscribe to private refuse collection services at rates varying from $12 to $26 per month, the city is able 
to provide the community with high quality services for a proposed monthly rate of $20.60, a cost just slightly above the 
average for the region.  Additionally, there are many ancillary benefits to maintaining the local refuse collection 
operation that also deserve consideration, most importantly public access to and interaction with city officials to voice 
questions and concerns, with the expectation of receiving favorable and timely response.  Other significant benefits 
include the availability of trained drivers to assist the Street Division with winter snow and ice operations; the ability to 
service the seventeen city parks and facilities; and the provision of refuse collection service for the many local events, 
street fairs and public gatherings held throughout the year.  With public approval overwhelmingly in support of the 
current refuse operation, it is recommended that the city continue to provide residential curbside collection to its 
existing and future residents. 
 
Commercial collection operations serve a very small percentage of the communities over 2,500 businesses, with the 
current 134 customers made up of 37 businesses, 80 multi-family developments and 17 city parks and facilities.  
Recently, representatives from several multifamily developments have questioned why they are not allowed to seek 
lower cost refuse service alternatives as is permitted for other commercial business customers.  Even when considering 
a proposed decrease in the city’s commercial collection rates, the savings may not be sufficient to satisfy the 
representatives citing significant savings if they are permitted to entertain private collection services.  Though a 
reasonable position to adopt may be to allow all customers subscribing to city dumpster collection service to consider 
private collection, it is generally anticipated that the loss of a significant portion of the multi-family customers would 
leave a customer base too small to justify the continuation of any public commercial refuse collection operations.  
Suspending commercial operations would result in an estimated $1.33 per month increase in residential rates to cover 
certain legacy costs associated with landfill management and general refuse overhead. 
 
As Delaware continues to grow and change, solid waste management policy and regulations requires periodic review 
and adjustment to remain both competitive, and to provide an appropriate level of service to the community.  Items 
such as bulk item and winter yard waste collections, downtown residential collection, publically accessible dumpsters, 
and the proposed expansion of refuse and recycling facilities are all additional areas currently under consideration and 
discussed in more detail within this report.     

 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

City of Delaware 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

Revised February 7, 2017 

 
Contents 

 
Executive Summary          1 
Background & History          3 

• Residential & Commercial Operations       3 

• Recycling Operations         4 

• Yard Waste Operations         5 

• EPA Regulations          5 
Proposed Program Improvements and Changes     6 

• Bulk Item Collection         6 

• Downtown Residential Collection       7 

• Downtown Business Collection        7 

• Downtown Recycling Containers       7 

• Big Belly Container          8  

• Food Waste Recycling         8 

• Commercial Service         8 
Refuse Collection Rates         9 

• Residential Rates          9 

• Commercial Rates          10 
Outlook for Maintaining the City Refuse Collection Program   11 
Recommendations          14 
Bulk Item Collection Policy         16 
Residential Refuse Collection Rate Comparison     17 
Special Waste Handling Options        18 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Background & History 

 
The City of Delaware formally established a Division of Sanitation within the Public Service Department by council 
ordinance No. 2199 approved on February 5nd, 1951.  The ordinance 
established the rules, means, methods and costs associated with the 
collection and disposal of garbage from all properties within the city.  
The action was performed “in the interest of the public health and 
general welfare of the City of Delaware to provide a uniform system for 
the collection and disposal of garbage and trash, and that said garbage 
systems to be operated exclusively by the City of Delaware.”  The 
operation formerly began on July 1st, 1951 serving Delaware’s 12,000 
residents with four rear load refuse collection vehicles and a crew of twelve men.   

Refuse was initially collected and taken to the Cherry Street landfill for disposal up until 1973 when that landfill was 
closed due to lack of space for continued operation and expansion.    In advance of the closure, the City purchased 
property to open and operate the Curve Road landfill east of the Norfolk Southern Rail Line and north of Curve Road.  
After seventeen years of operation, the city closed the Curve Road landfill in 1990 opting instead to utilize the County’s 
refuse transfer station on US 42 north of the city.  The transfer station remains in use today and is managed by a private 
contractor for daily solid waste disposal operations.  All city residential and commercial waste is taken to the county 
transfer station.  The current cost of disposal for refuse at the transfer station is $56.56 per ton.  This rate is subject to 
periodic adjustment based on operating expenses and is referred to locally as the “tipping fee”.   Tipping fees in the city 
account for an estimated $900,000 in annual refuse operation costs, making up just over 25% of the total cost of 
providing refuse service within the city.    

The City of Delaware is included in the Delaware, Know, Marion 
and Morrow Joint Solid Waste District (DKMM), the governing 
body established by State regulation in 1989 to develop and 
oversee the district’s Solid Waste Management Plan.  Among 
other things, the District places emphasis on reducing solid waste 
through the implementation and support of recycling operations, 
and makes funding available through grants to assist in 
supporting recycling opportunities.  The district receives financial 
support via fees originally established in 1994.  The current fee 
charged by DKMM is $6.00 per ton and is collected as part of the 
tipping fees charged at the transfer station. 

Residential & Commercial Operations 

Both residential and commercial refuse collection is currently provided through weekly service.  Residential service 
includes waste, recycling and yard waste collection, while commercial is primarily dumpster collection, though a few 
businesses are serviced via tip carts.  The combined residential and commercial refuse collection operation accounts for 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

66% of the cost of refuse collection or $2,306,000 annually.  City residents are required to subscribe to city refuse 
service while commercial service is optional to businesses.  The city currently has over 12,000 customers serviced using 
the tip-cart system.  Tip carts were introduced in 2001 as a means 
to be able to continue to provide cost effective service at 
competitive rates for all customers.  The tip-cart system requires 
specialized semi-automated side load vehicles that can be 
operated by a single man.   The tip cart collection system allows 
for expanding collection coverage as the city grows, with 
considerably less staff than the three man crew per vehicle 
required of rear load service operations.  The city is able to 
provide efficient service to its just under 38,000 residents today 
with only 14 employees, in contrast to the twelve initially required 
to serve the city in 1951.  Many communities across the country 
have switched to semi or fully-automated tip cart collection as a means to control costs and provide improved, more 
efficient collection service.  A 96 gallon tip cart, provided by the city, is the primary refuse container utilized for service, 
though 32 gallon containers are available for residents not requiring the larger unit.   Residential service is provided by a 
fleet of four, semi-automated side load tip cart collection vehicles, each with a single operator capable of servicing 600 
to 700 stops per day.    

The city serves just 37 of the over 2,500 businesses with commercial dumpster collection, representing less than 2% of 
the total business customers within the city.  Also served are 17 city parks and public facilities through its commercial 
collection operation.  By far the largest demand for dumpster service is from the 80 multi-family stops.  Though 
technically classified as residential customers, multi-family 
locations served by dumpsters make up 74 percent of the 
dumpster operation and as such, a majority of the estimated 
$630,000 annual cost associated with providing commercial 
dumpster collection.   In the past year, several owners of local 
multi-family properties have requested permission to utilize 
private collection citing significant cost savings over city service 
costs.  Additional discussion regarding the viability of continuing 
commercial collection is held below.   Commercial customers are 
serviced by a single rear load packer throughout the week, and 
with an additional truck assigned on Mondays and Fridays.     

Recycling Operations 

In 1992, the city began a curbside recycling collections program that currently produces an average of 1,400 tons 
annually of combined fiber and mixed plastic and metal materials.  The program was initiated in part, to meet State 
mandated refuse reduction standards requiring a 25% diversion of solid waste away from landfills within the DKMM 
Solid Waste District.    Approximately 43% of city residents participate in the curbside recycling program.  The materials 
are collected by the city and transferred to containers for transport by the current recycling contractor, Sims Brothers 
Inc., to their Marion, Ohio facility.  Following additional sorting, recyclables are sold to businesses that are able to 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

process them into usable material for manufacture of new products. Fluctuations in the market demand for recycled 
materials remain volatile.  The market demand is currently so low that the value to the recyclables collected locally is 
offset by the cost of shipping and processing them by the contractor.  The estimated $743,000 cost of managing the 
recycling program represents 21% of the total refuse operation in 2017.  This cost is offset slightly by $80,000 in annual 
tipping fees saved by diverting recyclables away from landfills.  The recycling program is managed year round with the 
use of three, split body, side-load recycling vehicles, each manned by a single operator.  Recycling collection containers 
are provided to residents at no cost.  

The current recycling transfer building located at Cherry Street is no longer of adequate 
size for the daily operation, and is in need of significant and costly repair.  As part of the 
ongoing consolidation of city services, the proposed construction of a new 27,000 SF 
refuse equipment storage and recycling transfer building remains a high priority.  The new 
facility with an estimated construction cost of $1.8 million would be located on the east 
side of the Public Works Facility at 440 E William Street.  The original recycling building on 
Cherry Street would be demolished, making way for expanded open space and passive 
park development along the river.   

Yard Waste Operations 

Yard waste collection remains an integral part of the overall refuse operation, and a widely used service by the majority 
of local residents.  The estimated $488,000 cost in 2017 represents 14% of the overall annual refuse operation cost.  
Though the yard waste program has been subject to several cost cutting measures over the last fifteen years including 

the elimination of the curbside leaf vacuum collection service and subsequent 
elimination of city leaf bag distribution, the program itself remains widely 
popular, generating over 1,800 tons of yard waste annually.  Yard waste 
materials, which include leaves, cut and bundles branches, tree limbs and 
Christmas trees, are collected and delivered to one of two privately operated 
organics composting facilities in Delaware, Price Farms Organics and Ohio 
Mulch.  Approximately 90% of yard waste collected is disposed of through 
Ohio Mulch at a rate of $6.88 per ton, accounting for the estimated $9,000 in 
tipping costs per year.  The yard waste collected during fall leaf collection is 
accepted by both facilities at no cost.   Yard waste service is managed through 

the use of two, rear load packer vehicles, each with a two or three-man crew operating from April through the beginning 
of December.  Consideration to provide increased scheduled collection during winter months is being dicussed. 

 EPA Regulations 

The Solid Waste Disposal Act of 1965 (SWDA) regulated the monitoring requirements at the Cherry Street landfill, closed 
in 1973.  Since that time, additional regulation including the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976, 
and numerous other federal and state regulations have had far reaching impacts on many aspects of municipal solid 
waste management and operations.  By the time the Curve Road landfill was closed in 1990, strict regulations had been 
established to control landfill operations and closures, in order to better protect both surface and ground water 
supplies.  Regulations have impacted both of the city’s closed landfills in different ways.  At Cherry Street, the city is 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

mandated to monitor for both the presence and migration of explosive gases, primarily methane, generated through the 
decomposition of landfilled materials.  Due to the presence of several occupied structures within 1000 feet of the edge 
of the Cherry Street landfill, the city maintains 18 gas monitoring wells to monitor gas migration.  Methane readings are 
collected monthly, recorded, and reported to the OEPA.  Recent samples indicate an increased presence of gas along the 
west side of the landfill, and as such will potentially require the installation of three additional monitoring wells along 
the west side to monitor gas migration. 

The Curve Road landfill, closed seventeen years after its initial opening, is subject to even more restrictive monitoring 
including both explosive gas and ground water contamination.   There are currently 6 gas monitoring wells and 12 
groundwater monitoring points at the Curve Road landfill.   Following closure, a groundwater leachate collection system 
was required to be installed and operated, which was subsequently constructed in 2006 at a cost of $600,000.  The 
system collects an average of 2.6 million gallons per year that must be transported to the Waste Water Treatment 
facility for proper treatment before being released into the Olentangy River.   Refuse staff has spent an average of 900 
hours annually, for the pumping and transport of leachate from the Curve Road landfill to the Cherry Street Water 
Reclamation facility.  In 2016, a leachate transfer line was completed from the landfill to the South-Central Sanitary 
sewer line just north of the landfill.  The $620,000 transfer line provides for the direct conveyance of leachate to the 
sanitary collection system, eliminating time consuming and costly pumping and trucking costs.  The installation of 3 
additional gas monitoring wells will be required along the west perimeter of the Curve Road landfill pending 
construction of a planned housing development just west of the landfill on the opposite side of the Norfolk Southern 
railway line.  All present and future monitoring, maintenance and capital improvement costs associated with both 
landfills are, and will remain the responsibility of the city.  The city spends on average, $75,000 annually for 
environmental consulting services for assistance with groundwater sampling, lab analysis and mandated OEPA reporting.   
Landfill monitoring and capital improvements costs are funded by revenues generated through refuse rates.  

 

Proposed Refuse Program Improvements and Changes 

Bulk item collection:  Bulk item collection is provided by the majority of refuse service providers, both publically and 
privately operated.   In the past the city has held annual or semi-annual spring/fall clean-up events where residents 
could bring large quantities of residential waste, including bulky items and materials for disposal.  The events were 

initially well attended though popularity declined in later years 
resulting in the cost of providing the service exceeding revenues being 
collected.  Today, public requests for bulk item collection continue 
however for the more practical and customer friendly curbside 
collection service, similar to how other communities manage bulk item 
disposal.  Curbside service is popular among many residents without 
the means to transport large items to a collection point or disposal 
facility.  Bulk items can include appliances, furniture or other items too 
large to be disposed on in a tip cart.  The city does offer a move-
in/move-out collection service to residents, and will also take 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

carpeting that has been appropriately cut, bundled and tagged.   An outline of the proposed pilot bulk item collection 
program was prepared in early 2016 and is included at the back of this report.   The policy would provide for pre-
arranged collection of bulk items on a designated day, typical to how similar programs are managed in other 
communities.   

Downtown Residential Collection:  As residential occupancy of downtown buildings continues to increase, the need to 
make adjustments to current collection policy and practices in order to better regulate residential refuse collection 
should be considered.  Though for the most part, the majority of residential waste collection occurs on the scheduled 
Monday collection day, there are incidents where trash bags are randomly deposited on the sidewalk at other times 
during the week.  Trash has also appeared on weekends during the heaviest downtown patronage, leading to both 
customer and business owner complaints, and subsequent costly response by the city to remove the bags.   Enforcing a 
uniform downtown residential collection policy could help curb the proliferation of residential waste in the downtown 
area.  One proposal suggests limiting downtown residential collection to a single day in the middle of the week, and 
would mandate trash only bet set at the curb between 8PM the previous night and 8AM on collection day.  Additional 
regulations such as bag color and placement near street cans could help minimize visibility, identify violations, and serve 
to expedite collection operations.   Finally, consideration should be given to requiring property owners with residential 
units to pay the city directly for refuse collection services, similar to how multi-family developments are managed.  This 
would significantly reduce the difficulty in tracking the high turnover of individual residential accounts in the downtown 
district.  All such policy should be discussed publically with property owners and tenants to determine overall viability. 

Downtown Business Collection:  Businesses located in the downtown district may subscribe to the city’s commercial 
refuse collection service, or subscribe to private collection if preferred.  The vast majority of downtown businesses 
utilize private collection service.  There are however several properties with particular needs that continue to subscribe 
to city service as alternative options are limited.  Because not all properties have available space at the rear of the 
building for the placement of refuse containers, they are forced to either place bagged trash or tip carts along the 
sidewalk for curbside collection, or to enter into a private agreement with another property owner for access to their 
dumpster.  Most recently, the city began piloting an alternative approach whereby a property owner is paid an annual 
fee by the city for allowing placement of a publically accessible dumpster on their property for access by adjacent 
businesses or residential units.  While these arrangements can work, changes in business occupancy and property 
ownership requires a substantial amount of staff time to address new concerns, and to make adjustments to 
agreements, rates, and collection schedules.  As with residential collections, any policy 
changes to commercial operations should be discussed publically with property owners and 
tenants to determine overall viability. 

Downtown Recycling Containers:  In 2015 the City installed twenty recycling containers as a 
means to increase recycling opportunities for patrons of the downtown area.  After two 
seasons, results regarding the utility of recycling containers remain below expectation.  While 
some individuals take time to properly dispose of recyclable materials in the containers, 
others continue to utilize the containers for general waste disposal including non-marketable 
plastic, foam and paper food and beverage containers, food waste, and food soiled paper 
waste.  Public understanding of accepted recyclable materials remains low, leading to 
improper use and contamination of the desired recyclable materials.  Contaminated materials 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

are not usable and end up in the main refuse stream to be disposed of in landfill operations.  The contamination rate is 
as high as 50% of all material collected downtown.  To underscore the issue, the total amount of usable recyclables 
collected from the downtown recycling containers over the two-day heavily patronized arts festival would fit within a 
single tip cart container.  Though recycling cans are clearly marked as to what should be placed within them, they 
continue to be utilized for general waste disposal. Additional labeling may help improve the proper utility of the 
recycling containers.  

 Big Belly Container:  The Big Belly solar powered refuse collection container was purchased 
and installed as a pilot project to determine both functionality and utility in the downtown 
municipal setting.  Though the devise operated as designed, there has been no notable savings 
to the community in reduced refuse collection operation cost in the downtown area, as 
normal collections had to continue to service the many street containers throughout the 
downtown area.  The unit was subsequently relocated to Mingo Park to test its performance 
in a setting with concentrated crowds. Similar results were found that the unit was utilized, 
however did not reduce the need to provide routine service to the many other refuse 
receptacles available throughout the park.  Improved utility may be achieved by eliminating all 
refuse collection containers within the park and replacing with just a few Big Belly units.   However, at an estimated cost 
of $4,000 per unit, and considering public demand for closely spaced refuse receptacles, the Big Belly unit is just not a 
good fit for the park or downtown settings, and the installation of additional units is not recommended.   

Food Waste Recycling:  The city was recently approached by a new food waste composting business, Innovative 
Organics, to gauge the city’s interest in establishing a food product recycling service within the city.  Plant based food 
products would be voluntarily placed in enclosed containers by residents participating in such a program, and collected 
on regularly scheduled refuse collection days.  Both collection containers and service would be privately funded and 
operated.  The food products would be transferred to a larger processing facility outside Delaware where they are used 
in an organic composting facility.  Though the current proposal was not supportable, staff will continue to work with 
future entities to better understand how such proposals could benefit the community.    

Commercial Service:  As stated previously, the city provides commercial 
dumpster collection service to a limited number of properties in town.  
Included are 80 multi-family developments containing 225 commercial 
dumpsters to be services weekly.   Though ordinance language 
designates these developments as residential, the type of service 
provided via large 2, 3, 4, 6 and 8 CY dumpster units is more commonly 
classified within the refuse industry as commercial collection.  Over the 
past few years the city has received requests from several multi-family 
property owners, each requesting permission to be able to utilize private 
dumpster collection services, claiming substantial savings over the city’s 
dumpster collection rates.  Private commercial refuse haulers can 
generally provide similar service at reduced cost for several reasons including reduced labor rates, lower overhead, and 
more efficient front load collection equipment.  It should be mentioned that at current rates, the average multi-family 
per unit cost for refuse collection service by the city is $11.55 per month. 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

Under consideration is a proposal that would allow for multi-family properties served via dumpster service, to be 
permitted to consider private collection service just as other local dumpster customers are able to.  If such a proposal is 
implemented, then there is a strong possibility that a majority of the city’s multi-family dumpster customers would 
eventually opt for the lower cost private contract refuse service.  As a result, the commercial customer base would be 
limited and lead to subsequent increases in commercial collection rates for the remaining customers.  Eventually, the 
customer base would be too small to justify maintaining commercial collection operations by the city, at which point 
remaining commercial collection operations should be suspended.  Some operations costs currently included as part of 
commercial collections rates would then be shifted to the residential collection program costs.  It is estimated that 
suspending commercial operations would lead to an increase in the residential collection rate of $1.33 per month. 

Refuse Collection Rates 

Refuse collection rates have been adjusted eleven times over the past twenty-five years leading to a calculated average 
annual rate increase of 3.89% for residential service in the City of Delaware.  Required adjustments can be attributed to 
several factors including increases in labor, fuel and equipment costs, as well as mandated OEPA regulations expanding 
recycling operations and landfill management.  A detailed review of the refuse rates based on current operation and 
associated costs has recently been completed.  An increase in the residential collection rate is proposed.  The increase, 
however, is below the historical calculated average annual increase for the time period since the last increase in 2011.  
As stated above, changes to commercial operations will impact the final residential collection rates as well. 

Residential Collection Rates (Monthly) 
Year 1992 1994 2002 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2017 
Rate $10.00 $12.00 $14.00 $14.50 $15.00 $15.35 $15.66 $16.91 $18.60 $19.16 $19.73 TBD 

 

Residential Rates: 

The city’s residential rates remain very competitive with the other public sector rates as well as private collection rates 
for similar collection operations.  The local monthly residential rate is comprised of four separate costs; waste collection, 
recycling collection, yard waste collection, and tipping fees.  Staff has reviewed the rates of over thirty local and regional 
jurisdictions providing residential collection service and found rates ranging from $12 to $26 per month for curbside 
service, with the average rate at $18.93/month.  It should be noted though that there is wide variability in factors 
impacting collection rates including range of services provided, frequency of collection, proximity to landfills, inclusion of 
legacy costs such as landfill management and operations, and solid waste district  fees to name a few.  It is very difficult 
to provide true apples to apples comparison with so many factors involved in determining monthly refuse rates.  
However, a summary has been provided at the back of this report listing the individual rates and services provided by 
each jurisdiction included.  The information was collected through both work performed by the Delaware County Health 
Department for jurisdictions within Delaware County, and research by Public Works staff for other Ohio communities.  
Four of the communities, including Delaware, operate their own public municipal solid waste collection program.  The 
majority of communities offer solid waste collection through publically contracted services that are bid out every few 
years.  The table below shows proposed residential refuse collection rates.  An alternative table is also included that 
indicates the residential collection rates that would be proposed assuming commercial collection operations are 
suspended.   



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

10 | P a g e  
 

Dumpster 1 Dump/week 2 Dump/week 3 Dump/week 4  Dump/week 5 Dump/week
2 CY Dumpster $100.27 $200.44 $298.06 $395.63 $493.26
3 CY Dumpster $106.97 $213.28 $319.89 $426.51 $533.15
4 CY Dumpster $123.35 $239.00 $354.66 $470.31 $585.97
6 CY Dumpster $143.98 $277.72 $411.43 $545.14 $678.84
8 CY Dumpster $182.74 $343.06 $507.55 $672.04 $836.54

Existing Monthly Dumpster Collections Fees 

Proposed 2017 Monthly Residential Rate  
 Refuse Recycling Yard Waste Tipping Fee Total 

32 Gallon w/ 50% Discount $3.80 $2.63 $1.70 $2.17 $10.30 
96 Gallon $7.59 $5.26 $3.39 $4.35 $20.60 

 
Proposed Monthly Residential Rate (Commercial Operations Suspended) 

 Refuse Recycling Yard Waste Tipping Fee Total 
32 Gallon w/ 50% Discount $4.13 $2.82 $1.84 $2.17 $10.97 

96 Gallon $8.27 $5.64 $3.68 $4.34 $21.93 
 

Commercial Rates: 

Commercial or “Dumpster” rates are comprised of two component factors: the cost to service an individual dumpster 
unit and the cost to dispose of the waste from each unit.  The first remains equivalent for all dumpsters while the second 
varies depending on dumpster capacity.  Because the city offers a wide variety of dumpster unit sizes and service 
schedules, the table provides the calculated monthly cost per individual dumpster unit as a function of size and service 
frequency.  Shown below are current commercial rates followed by proposed rates.  Based on the most recent analysis, 
the proposed commercial rates reflect a moderate decrease in monthly commercial rates as indicated.  The difference in 
the newly calculated rates over current rates can be attributed to adjustments in the methodology assigning an 
equitable distribution and allocation of refuse service costs among the four principal components making up the refuse 
operation.  The proposed reductions will result in savings to commercial customers of a few hundred dollars per year, up 
to a few thousand dollars per year for the larger multifamily complexes.   

 

 

 

Dumpster Size CY 1 2 3 4 5
2 $85.37 $170.74 $256.10 $341.47 $426.84
3 $94.48 $188.95 $283.43 $377.91 $472.38
4 $103.58 $207.17 $310.75 $414.34 $517.92
6 $121.80 $243.60 $365.41 $487.21 $609.01
8 $140.02 $280.04 $420.06 $560.08 $700.09

Proposed Monthly Dumpster Collection Fees
Weekly Service Frequency (Dumps per week)



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

11 | P a g e  
 

Outlook for Maintaining the City Refuse Collection Program 

In 1951, City Council recognized the value of establishing a well-organized and managed solid waste collection service 
for the city.  Sixty-five years later, the same holds true with refuse collection remaining a critical service for public 
health, safety and well-being.   Unlike the 1950’s however, many additional regulations are now in place that have been 
established to protect the environment and public infrastructure, thus necessitating greater city involvement in all solid 
waste collection programs.  Some communities have moved away from providing a municipally managed solid waste 
collection service, allowing for the privatization of solid waste collection without local regulation.  This has contributed 
to under regulated and intrusive operations involving multiple contractors working on independent schedules and 
pricing structures. As a result, not all residents are treated equally and have little or no representation or say regarding 
their associated refuse collection service and costs.  Recognizing this, many public agencies have since joined together to 
form large public consortiums able to receive publically bid refuse services resulting in price stabilization, controlled 
collection scheduling and improved access to public officials regarding service concerns.  One such collective contract 
includes Orange, Genoa and Liberty Townships, and serves over 68,000 county residents. In this case, residents benefit 
from fixed costs, though individuals are still required to establish service directly with the private refuse hauler under 
the terms of the agreement.   In other communities like Marysville, the city continues to provide refuse collection 
service, however with collection activity performed by a private contractor through a publically bid contract.  The later 
example provides a higher level of service and advocacy on behalf of the residents by the city. 

In Delaware, residents are serviced by a publically operated refuse collection program.  Some would argue that the 
highest level of customer care and service is best provided through a well-managed and efficiently run publically 
operated division, as is the case in Delaware.  Residents in the city enjoy the highest level of access to program 
administrators, and are able to contact the city directly with service questions, complaints and suggestions.  Residents 
also have access to their local council representation to discuss policy and concerns.  Others however, may submit that 
lowest cost should be the predominant consideration when evaluating whether or not a service should be publically or 
privately managed.  To help in contrasting the differences between the current refuse services versus private service, a 
brief summary of the pros and cons of privatizing refuse collection in Delaware has been included.   A similar summary 
regarding the privatization of commercial collection services in the city are included as well. 

Privatizing all Refuse Collection Service  - Pros 

• Reduced labor force and associated administrative and management operations 
• Reduced injuries, workers comp claims, and insurance costs 
• Reduced employee work force, absentee and disciplinary issues 
• Reduced concern regarding the viability of the future of County Transfer station 
• Reduced concern over viability of local private recycling and composting operations  
• Eliminates issues having to work in inclement conditions or hazardous driving conditions 
• Reduced winter maintenance costs of treating refuse routes in advance of collection service 
• Eliminates concerns over equipment breakdowns 
• Frees up fleet mechanic’s time to work on other priority vehicle repairs 
• Eliminates need for construction of new refuse facility 
• Allows for competitively bid refuse collection rates and 3-year fixed contract costs.  
• Opens building and storage space at Public Works for other activities and future projects 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

12 | P a g e  
 

 

Privatizing all Refuse Collection Service  - Cons 

• Loss of direct public input into rates, collection schedules  and level of service 
• Loss in direct access to refuse operation administration 
• Eliminates funding transfers to SMR and general funds 
• Reduced CDL driver workforce to assist in winter snow and ice management and plowing 
• Reduced response to assist in refuse collection for numerous special events, parades, first Fridays etc. 
• Reduced response to assist in weather related cleanups from high winds, ice, flooding etc. 
• Loss in immediate response for illegal dumping (downtown area) 
• Loss in local assistance for problematic downtown collection needs 
• Loss of assistance to local police and health department initiatives 
• Decreases opportunities to promote recycling opportunities with the city 
• Increased demand in understaffed Street Division to address potential refuse issues 
• Loss in residence move-in and move-out service 
• Loss in access to DKMM funding for recycling program improvements 
• Potential for increased impact to local roadways by private refuse haulers 
• Requires City to use private refuse hauler to service 17 city facilities and parks 
• No control in residential call-back requests for missed collections 
• Could increase number of unresolved complaints that will be redirected to private contractor 
• Requires layoff of 14 existing city employees, with associated unemployment cost impacts 
• Liquidation of significant equipment assets with an estimated  $3.5 million replacement value. 

 

Elimination of Commercial “Dumpster” Collection Service  – Pros 

• Allow customers to contract with less costly service options 
• Reduces number of problematic downtown customer issues for city to manage 
• Reduce equipment inventory and associated insurance, maintenance and replacement costs 
• Reduced opportunity for staff injury and equipment failure during commercial operations 
• Opens storage space at Public Works for other activities and future projects 

Elimination of Commercial “Dumpster” Collection Service  – Cons 

• Legacy costs in landfill management remain and must be covered via residential collection rates 
• Residents in multifamily developments don’t contribute to refuse operational costs 
• Reduced availability of equipment for special events, weather emergencies and cleanups.   
• May require city to contract for private service collection of 17 public facilities. 
• Requires code change to address downtown residential collection  
• Require code change to allow for  placement of “publically accessible” dumpsters 
• Could increase number of unresolved complaints that will be redirected to private contractor 
• Will result in need for increased code enforcement regarding waste disposal in downtown business district 

 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

13 | P a g e  
 

The long term viability of maintaining a publically managed residential waste collection program deserves periodic 
examination.  Research indicates that the city continues to be able to offer the community a full range of residential 
collection services at rates that are generally competitive with private sector operations.  While several components 
contribute to the total cost of providing residential service, a significant factor in maintaining competitive rates is 
attributable to the proximity of the Delaware County Solid Waste Transfer Station.  Without the transfer station, refuse 
disposal would have to be redirected to the next closest facility in Marion which would add an additional 47 mile round 
trip to each load being disposed of.  Prior analysis indicates utilization of the Marion facility would add an estimated 
$340,000 annually to the cost of providing residential refuse service based on increased labor, fuel and vehicle mileage.   
This would be reflected in an estimated $2.50 increase in the monthly collection rates.  Longer term changes would also 
be required including an increase in crew size to offset higher travel times, and the replacement of refuse service 
vehicles with equipment designed for increased highway travel.   Both would add to further increases in the monthly 
residential service costs.  Staff works closely with county officials to express the continued benefits to not only the city, 
but the region in maintaining the current solid waste transfer station. 

Public sentiment would seemingly indicate a preference to maintain 
residential refuse operations as part of city services.  According to the 
recent community attitudes survey, 96% of residents surveyed are “very 
satisfied” with the city’s refuse collection service.  The current crew takes 
pride in their respective performance and continues to provide a high 
level of customer satisfaction as echoed in public comment from local 
residents.   Nevertheless, government accountability remains an 
important issue in the fair evaluation of how public services are provided.  
For this reason, the city continues to evaluate many of its service 
operations including solid waste management, to be sure the needs of the community are being met, and associated 
costs remain acceptable. 

A second issue questions the future viability of maintaining commercial refuse collection service within the city.  
Amending city code to allow for any property utilizing dumpster collection service to seek more cost effective private 
service could essentially reduce the city’s commercial refuse collection operation to a point it may no longer be practical 
to continue.   A resultant suspension in commercial collection would require an increase in the residential collection rate 
by an estimated $1.33/month.  If suspended, commercial operations could be phased out over a several month period 
allowing sufficient time for remaining customers to seek alternative service through private contract.   If practical, the 
city could maintain its ability to continue refuse collection for special events, public parks and facilities, move-in/move-
out service, bulk collection, and during weather related clean-ups as required.   Policy discussion would have to be 
considered regarding the continuation of service to those businesses and multi-family developments able to be served 
by tip cart collections as a means to maintain these properties within the city system.  Policy regarding the continued 
establishment of publically accessible dumpsters should also be addressed, specifically in regards to the downtown 
business district.  

 

 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

14 | P a g e  
 

Recommendations 

1. Residential Refuse Collection & Rates:  Maintain City residential collection service.  The many ancillary benefits 
of maintaining a strong municipal refuse collection program, as outlined in the pros & cons discussion, also 
weigh strongly into the overall value of maintaining the service locally.  As long as the community remains 
satisfied with the level of service and value being provided, and that collection rates remain within the range of 
rates offered through private sector, the city should continue to operate its residential refuse collection program 
including waste, curbside recycling and yard waste collection.   
 
Based on recent detailed analysis, the new residential rates should be established as follows:   

 
96 Gallon Tip Cart    $20.60/month or $21.93/month without commercial 
32 Gallon Tip Cart (Senior Discount)  $10.30/month or $10.97/month without commercial 

 
2. Bulk Item Collection:  Recent survey work clearly identifies that bulk item collection is a part of the majority of 

residential collection programs across the state, and should be included as part of the city’s operation.  A draft 
pilot program was prepared in early 2016 outlining the terms of operating a bulk item collection program.  This 
information has been included at the back of this document.  It is proposed to pilot a bulk item collection 
program for several months to better understand both customer utility and program efficacy in addressing the 
need.  Rates, frequency of service, as well as other regulations would be initially established in accordance with 
the program outline, and could be adjusted pending the results of the pilot period.  
 

3. Commercial “Dumpster” Collection:  Consideration should be given to provide all customers requiring dumpster 
service to do so under the same regulations and opportunities.  This would include allowing larger multi-family 
developments utilizing dumpsters to have the option to contract with private refuse collection contractors.  
Understanding the potential loss of 74% of current commercial accounts, the city would have to consider 
moving toward suspending commercial collections all together.   Public hearings and discussion should be held 
to gain additional insight as to the impacts of ending commercial collection by the city.   
 
The proposed new collection rates assuming commercial collection operations are maintained are: 
 

Proposed Monthly Dumpster Collection Fees 
Dumpster Size  Weekly Service Frequency (Dumps per week) 

CY 1 2 3 4 5 
2 $85.56 $171.11 $256.67 $342.23 $427.78 
3 $95.12 $190.24 $285.36 $380.48 $475.60 
4 $104.68 $209.37 $314.05 $418.74 $523.42 
6 $123.81 $247.62 $371.44 $495.25 $619.06 
8 $142.94 $285.88 $428.82 $571.76 $714.70 

 
 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

15 | P a g e  
 

 
 

4. Downtown Refuse Collection:   Recommended adjustments to residential collection operations in the downtown 
business district  should be publically reviewed and discussed, including;  
 

a. Establishing a new residential collection day in the middle of the week 
b. Considering specified trash bag drop off locations and bag colors  
c. Establish permissible trash drop off hours 
d. Requiring property owners of residential units to be the point of contact for refuse billings 
e. Requiring property owners with rear access to maintain containers on their respective properties for 

collection of all of their respective business and residential tenants 
f. Establish code and user rates  for the placement of publically accessible dumpsters 
g. Consider adjustments to penalties for violations to refuse regulations 

   
5. Refuse Code Changes:  As part of this update, several proposed adjustments have been discussed to 

accommodate changes in policy or program initiatives.  Such changes should be considered through public 
discussion, finalized, and presented through subsequent council meetings as code adjustments.   
 

6. Facility Improvements:  Advance the design/build process of the proposed 27,000 SF refuse/recycling building, 
with a goal of being under construction by 3rd quarter of this year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

16 | P a g e  
 

Bulk Item Collection Pilot Program 

This program is intended to provide a convenient and affordable means for city residents to periodically dispose of large bulky items 
that do not fit within weekly collection tipcart containers, and who are unable to transport the items to the Delaware County Solid 
Waste Transfer Station.  The program is not intended to be used for the removal of an entire household of furniture/appliances 
generated from i.e. property evictions and abandonments or otherwise generated from fire, flood or other event.   

Cost per resident  

• $25.00 for up to first three (3) bulk items per stop. 
• Additional items are $10.00 each.  Maximum six (6) total items per stop. 
• Exact change or check required.  No credit card payments will be accepted. 
• Fees must be pre-paid at 440 E. William St. weekdays between 8 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.  

 
Collection Date/Time:   

• Collection of bulk items will be scheduled to occur on the second Tuesday of each month. 
• Items must be placed at the end of driveway or within the adjacent tree lawn area by 7AM on the scheduled day of 

collection. 
Permitted items to include: Items that will be collected through the Bulk item Collection Program include: 

• Appliances (non-refrigerant) including water heaters, washer, dryers, stoves, dishwashers, microwave oven, and flat panel 
TV’s. 

• Appliances (containing refrigerant) including refrigerators, freezers, dehumidifiers, air conditioners.  Note that collection of 
appliances containing refrigerant require completion by applicant of a “Verification of Refrigerant Disposal Form” at the 
time of application.   

• Household furniture, including lawn and patio furniture sets 
• Carpeting/padding (must be cut up and rolled into bundles not to exceed 4 feet in length and 16 inches in diameter.  

Bundles must be tied with rope or tape heavy enough to support the weight of the bundle. 
• Mattresses/box springs (MUST be wrapped in heavy plastic & securely taped).  Unwrapped mattresses/box springs will not 

be taken. 
• Bathtubs/toilets/sinks/doors 
• Exercise equipment (treadmills, exercise bikes, etc.)  
• Glass must be removed from bulk items, placed in a box, taped shut and marked glass 
• Basketball poles (remove backboard from pole). The pole should be cut into 4 foot sections and all weight removed from 

base. 
 

Excluded Items:  Items that will NOT be collected through the Bulk item Collection Program include: 

• Construction materials, Concrete/Asphalt/Dirt/Stone of any type 
• Auto parts; Tires of any type/Batteries 
• Hazardous waste/Oil/Paint/Flammable or explosive materials 
• Yard Waste/Brush/Rocks/Dirt/Railroad Ties/Logs 
• Bagged Trash/Trash Cans/Cardboard 
• Pianos, Spas, Hot Tubs, Pool Tables, etc. 
• Computer monitors, Fluorescent Bulbs 

 
For additional information or questions please contact the Public Works Department at 740-203-1810 

 
 



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

17 | P a g e  
 

 

Jurisdiction Population
Residential 
Collection 

Fee

Containers 
Fees

Total Monthly 
Fee

Senior Rate 
or Discount

Curbside 
Recycling

Yard Waste 
Collection

Bulk Item 
Collection

City of Delaware (1) 37,316 $20.60 No $20.60 50% Yes Yes Pending
City of Powell (5) 12,975 $16.95 Not Provided $16.95 10% Yes Yes Yes
Marysville (4) 22,817 $21.00 No $21.00 30% Yes No Yes
Springfield 59,680 $18.79 No $18.79 10% Yes Yes Yes
Lebanon 20,623 $18.29 No $18.29 10% Yes Yes Yes
Beaver Creek 46,277 $19.98 No $19.98 10% Yes Yes Yes
Grove City 39,388 $15.00 $1.00 $16.00 10% Yes Yes Yes
Hilliard 33,649 $16.43 No $16.43 10% Yes Yes Yes
Westerville 38,384 $18.00 $3.50 $21.50 10% Yes Yes Yes
Pickerington 19,745 $9.52 $3.50 $17.02 10% $4.00 Yes Yes
Marion (1) 36,363 $22.00 Not Provided $22.00 50% Yes Yes Yes
Genoa Township 25,272 $12.95 $3.00 $15.95 10% Yes Yes Yes
Orange Township 27,104 $12.95 $3.00 $15.95 10% Yes Yes Yes
Liberty Township 16,308 $12.95 $3.00 $15.95 10% Yes Yes Yes
Upper Sandusky (1) 6,527 $12.00 Not Provided $12.00 No Yes No Yes
Newark 47,986 $18.79 $3.50 $22.29 10% No Yes Yes
Lancaster (1) 39,766 $13.50 Not Provided $13.50 33% No Yes Yes
Xenia 25,498 $21.99 No $25.49 10% $3.50 No Yes
Mansfield 46,830 $18.14 $3.50 $21.64 10% No Yes No
Village of Prospect (1) 1,100 $18.50 No $18.50 No No Once/Month No
Village of Sunbury 5,057 $11.25 $2.50 $16.70 10% $2.95 No Yes
Village of Galena (2) 768 $16.43 $3.00 $19.43 6% Yes No No
Village of Ashley 1,347 $14.75 Not Provided $14.75 No Yes No No
Kingston Township 2,225 $12.88 Not Provided $17.28 No $4.40 No No
Concord Township 10,527 $16.95 No $16.95 10% Yes No Yes
Shawnee Hills 770 $26.00 Not Provided $30.00 No $4.00 No No
Porter Township 2,052 $17.84 $2.50 $24.34 10% $4.00 No No
Marlboro Township 293 $16.33 Not Provided $16.33 No No No No
Oxford Township (3) 1,008 $15.06 Not Provided $15.06 No No No No
Berlin Township 7,175 $14.98 No $14.98 10% Yes No Yes
Berkshire Township 2,853 $14.98 No $14.98 10% Yes No Yes
Delaware Township 2,064 $14.98 No $14.98 10% Yes No Yes

(1)  Public operated refuse service
(2)  Chipping Service provided byTownship May-October Average Monthly Rate $18.93
(3)  46% Paid by Township
(4)  Yard Waste Collection is provided through the Sanitation Division Rev. 2/7/17
(5)  Recycling Container provided by city

Residential Refuse Collection Survey '16/'17



 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

18 | P a g e  
 

Special Waste Handling Options 

Gently used clothing, bedding, furniture, appliances and household items 
• People in Need, Inc.  - 138 Johnson Drive, Delaware, OH  43015 Phone: 740.363.6284 
• Good Will - 1135 B Columbus Pike (Rt.23) Delaware, Ohio 43015 Phone: (740) 362-5541 
• Salvation Army - 8659 Columbus Pike Lewis Center, OH, 43035 

 
Surplus & Used Building Materials 

• Habitat for Humanity ReStore 305 Curtis Street, Delaware, OH 43015 (740) 363-9950  
 
Cell Phones -may be taken to the Delaware County Victims Services or Sheriff's Office, Columbus Zoo (also accepts cell phone 
peripherals), and Sims Recycling. 
 
Automobiles - May be accepted by local charities, including the Kidney Foundation, Goodwill, Salvation Army, and Wheels for 
Wishes. 
 
Bulk Waste Disposal 

• Delaware County Transfer Station, 888 US42 North (740-369-7700) (Fees)  
• College Hunks Hauling Junk – 652 W Central Ave., Delaware  Phone: (740) 362-4244 

 
Bulk Residential Yard Waste  

• Price Barns Organics  4838 Warrensburg Rd. Delaware, OH 43015 (740-369-1000) 
Ohio Mulch                    883 US Highway 42 N (740-363-8496)    

 
Tires - Tires may be taken to the Delaware County Solid Waste Transfer Station (Fee) 740-369-7700.  The DKMM Solid Waste 
District holds special Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Days (http://dkmm.org) .  Tires are accepted for a fee of $1 for 
passenger tires (17" or less), $4 for truck tires and $25 each for Semi/Farm/Tractor tires at the HHW Days only. 
 
Automobile Batteries -Car or truck batteries can be dropped off at Monro Muffler (1105 Columbus 
Pike), Tractor Supply Company (2621 US23 N), or Sims Recycling Center (65 London Rd) 
 
Rechargeable Batteries-  Radio Shack North Point Plaza Lewis Center, 43035 740-657-1140; Home Depot 8704 Owenfield 
Dr., Lewis Center, 43035 740-548-9961; Batteries Plus 8593 Columbus Pike, 614-396-5490 
 
Appliances - Appliances can be taken to Sims Recycling (fee for Freon and non Freon), the Delaware County Solid Waste 
Transfer Station will accept non Freon appliances at no charge.  Freon must be removed by a certified technician.   
 
Electronics- are accepted at Sims Recycling, Best Buy and Ohio Drop Off at Ohio Mulch (www.ohiodropoff.com).  For 
television and computer monitors, Sims charges $.40 a pound for televisions and $.25 a pound for CRT style monitors. Sims 
does not accept any flat panel, rear projection screens or laptops.  Best Buy accepts 32" or less screen size tube televisions and 
60" or less flat-screen televisions free of charge.  Ohio Drop Off at Ohio Mulch locations (NO CRT Monitors or Tube Televisions) 
only LCD tvs and LCD computer monitors. 
 
Household Hazardous Waste Drop Offs - One drop off is held annually in each of the District's four counties.  Two events are 
held each spring and two events are held each fall.  Residents of Delaware County are welcome to attend events in Delaware 
Knox, Marion, or Morrow Counties (http://dkmm.org). 
 
 
 

http://dkmm.org/


 
2017 Solid Waste Management Program Update 

 

19 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Light Bulbs - CFLs and fluorescent tubes (small quantities) from residences can be taken to Lowes. Home Depot accepts CFL's 
(compact Fluorescent) only. Menard's will accept tubes only if replacement tubes are purchased from them. Fluorescent lamps 
can be brought to the DKMM Household Hazardous Waste Drop offs (http://dkmm.org)  
 
Motor Oil - can be taken to TSC, Walmart in Lewis Center or Delaware, or Auto Zone stores, or check with a service center 
near you. 
 
Polystyrene (#6) plastic peanuts -  The UPS Store 175 S Sandusky St., Delaware, 43015 740-363-7653; Pak Mail 825 Houk 
Rd., Delaware 43015 740-363-5530; Pak Mail  Centers of America 8595 Columbus Pike, Lewis Center, 43035 740-657-3600 
 
Vegetable Oils - can be recycled.  For more information, call MB Katter at 740-362-3000. 
  
Prescription Drug Drop Boxes –  

• Delaware County Jail - 844 US 42 N., Delaware 
• Delaware City Police Dept. - 70 N. Union St., Delaware 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 16-110   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       January 9, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 737.01 OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES, RELATING TO CIRCUSES (COUNCIL PERMISSION, 
LICENSE, BOND AND INSURANCE REQUIRED).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Last March, in conjunction with consideration of a circus permit, Council 
indicated it would like staff to propose an update to the Code.  The proposed 
changes update the requirements for getting a permit as these requirements have 
not been updated since 1976.  In addition, the revision allows rejection of the 
permit if the Council finds that the circus mistreats animals.  
 
Circus Pages has started the process for a permit for their tentative circus date 
of March 24, 2017.  The resolution will come before Council sometime in 2017. 
 
Prior to placing this item on the agenda a draft of this ordinance was provided to 
Circus Pages and the individuals who came to speak at the hearing last March. 
 
Update: The attached draft includes two changes adopted by council at the 
1/9/17 meeting.  One prohibits exotic animals and the other defines 
mistreatment based on APHIS citations, with an additional clause for the city’s 
animal control citations. 
   



The attached draft adds an explicit exception for accredited zoos.  This is not a 
policy change, as the section has not been applied to zoos in the past. However, 
this clarification addresses testimony we received and makes the exception 
clearer. 
 
After researching the definition of ‘menagerie’ staff has added a new section (e) 
to clarify that this section is not intended to apply to accredited zoos.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The Code has not been updated since 1976. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Allows Council to decline to issue a permit, if Council finds that the circus has 
mistreated animals. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 16-110 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 737.01 OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE’S CODIFIED ORDINANCES, 
RELATING TO CIRCUSES (COUNCIL PERMISSION, 
LICENSE, BOND AND INSURANCE REQUIRED).  
 

WHEREAS, Section 737.01 has not been amended since 1976; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that the criteria for issuing a circus 

permit must be updated; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware; State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  737.01 of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances shall be 
amended as follows: 
 
737.01. - Council permission, license, bond and insurance required.  
(a) No person, firm or corporation, except a licensee under this chapter, shall 
operate, manage, exhibit or produce any circus, carnival or menagerie within the 
City.  A LICENSE SHALL NOT BE ISSUED FOR A CIRCUS, CARNIVAL, OR 
MENAGERIE THAT INCLUDES WILD OR EXOTIC ANIMALS, AS DEFINED BY 
505.23 OF THE DELAWARE CODIFIED ORDINANCES. 
(b) Every person, firm or corporation desiring to engage in such business shall 
secure the permission of Council therefor, and shall obtain from the City Manager 
a license therefor, for which a fee of ten dollars ($10.00) per day THE FEE SET 
FORTH IN THE FEE SCHEDULE of presence and/or operation in the City shall 
be PAID charged. A LICENSE APPLICATION MUST BE SUBMITTED AT LEAST 
30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT.  IF TIMELY FILED, the permission of Council 
shall be granted unless it affirmatively appears DETERMINES that any such THE 
proposed circus, carnival or menagerie shall in any way endanger or threaten the 
public peace, property, health, safety or welfare of the City OR THAT THE 
CIRCUS HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN FIVE NON-CRITICAL OR TWO 
CRITICAL NON-COMPLIANCE CITATIONS BASED ON INSPECTIONS BY THE 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE’S ANIMAL AND PLANT 
HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE (APHIS) OR HAS RECEIVED AN ANIMAL 
CONTROL CITATION BY THE CITY, WITHIN THE PAST THREE YEARS.  
(c) If the issuance of a license under this section is authorized by Council, the 
same shall not be issued until the applicant files with the City Manager a bond 
executed by the licensee as principal and by a good and sufficient corporate surety 
company licensed to do business in Ohio as surety, and whose name appears on 
the current list published by the United States Treasury Department of accepted 
sureties on Federal bonds, conditioned that the principal obligor will operate any 



such circus, carnival or menagerie in strict accordance with the terms of this 
chapter and other applicable provisions of these Codified Ordinances; that the 
principal will remedy any and all damages to and shall clean up any refuse, litter, 
debris or dirt deposited on any streets, curbs, gutters, water lines, fire hydrants 
and other public property, occasioned in any manner by his operation of such 
circus, carnival or menagerie. Such bond shall inure to the benefit of the City, 
shall be in a form to comply herewith, shall be in the amount of ONE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000) twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) and 
shall be approved by the City Attorney.  
(d) In addition to the aforesaid bond, the applicant shall furnish to the City 
Manager a certified copy of a certificate of general liability and property damage 
insurance, NAMING THE CITY AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED in the amounts as 
follows:  
(1) Public liability insurance in an amount of not less than ONE MILLION one 
hundred thousand dollars ($1,000,000.00) for injuries, including accidental 
death, to any one person; subject to the same limit for each person, in an amount 
not less than three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00) on account of each 
accident;  
(2) Property damage insurance in the amount of not less than ONE MILLION 
fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00)($1,000,000.00) on account of any one 
accident which insurance shall protect the general public, and shall save, 
indemnify and keep harmless, within such limits, the City against all liability, 
judgments, damages, costs and expenses which may in any way accrue against 
the City in consequence of the granting of such license and will in all things 
strictly comply with the conditions of such license.  
(e) THIS SECTION DOES NOT APPLY TO ASSOCIATION OF ZOOS AND 
AQUARIUMS (AZA) OR ZOOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA (ZAA)  
ACCREDITED ZOOS. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 02/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-02    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       February 27, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 505.23 OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE’S 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES, RELATING TO WILD AND EXOTIC ANIMALS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
At its last meeting, City Council incorporated an amendment to its pending 
circus legislation which would prohibit circuses using wild and exotic animals 
from performing in the City.  In order to effectuate the intent of that amendment, 
a corresponding change is needed to the City’s existing exotic and wild animal 
ordinance.  This legislation makes that change, while attempting to ensure that 
accredited Zoos are permitted to bring demonstration animals to the City.  A 
draft of this legislation was provided to the Columbus zoo for comment, and this 
draft incorporates their recommendations and comments.  
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
This legislation will be needed to implement changes that were incorporated into 
a proposed ordinance amending the circus permit process.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
This would remove the exception for circuses and add an explicit exception for 
accredited zoos.  
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 505.23 OF THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE’S CODIFIED ORDINANCES, 
RELATING TO WILD AND EXOTIC ANIMALS.  
 

WHEREAS, Section 737.01 has not been amended since 1976; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council has adopted a chang to 737.01 which requires a 

corresponding amendment to make effective; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware; State of Ohio: 
 

 SECTION 1.  505.23 of the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances shall be 
amended as follows: 
 
505.23. - Wild or exotic animals.  
(a) No person shall market in any form wholesale or retail, any wild or exotic 

animal and any animal otherwise prohibited by any other section of these 
Codified Ordinances. Exceptions to this prohibition include: 
those animals native to the farm and sold at auction or by private sale, such 
as horses, cattle, swine and poultry and those animals sold by pet dealers or 
by private sale, such as domestic cats, domestic dogs, domestic rabbits, 
guinea pigs, chinchilla, mice, hamsters, gerbils, psittacine birds and 
nonpoisonous, nonmaneating fish.  
(1) FARM ANIMALS SUCH AS HORSES, CATTLE, SWINE AND 

POULTRY 
(2)  AS WELL AS DOMESTIC CATS, DOMESTIC DOGS, DOMESTIC 

RABBITS  
(3)        GUINEA PIGS, CHINCHILLA, MICE, RATS, HAMSTERS,  

GERBILS  
(4)  PSITTACINE BIRDS, FINCHES, CANARIES, DOVES 
(5)  AMPHIBANS 
(6)  NON-VENEMOUS, NON-CRODODILIAN REPTILES UNDER SIX 

FEET IN LENGTH 
 (7)  NON POINSONOUS, NONMANEATING FISH  

 
(b) No person shall own or harbor any wild or exotic animal. Exceptions to this 

prohibition are circuses, veterinarians (for the purpose of medical treatment), 
ANIMAL CARE PROFESSIONALS EMPLOYED BY ASSOCIATION OF ZOOS 
AND AQUARIUMS (AZA) AND ZOOLOGICAL ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 
(ZAA) ACCREDITED ZOOS, and educational research facilities.  



(c) ANIMALS LISTED IN 505.23(A) MAY BE OWNED AND KEPT PURSUANT 
TO THE REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS OF THE DELAWARE 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE ZONING 
CODE.  
 Farm animals such as horses, cattle, swine and poultry,as well as domestic 
cats, domestic dogs, domestic rabbits, guinea pigs, chinchilla, mice, hamsters, 
gerbils, psittacine bird, nonmaneating fish may be owned and kept pursuant 
to the requirements of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Delaware 
including, but not limited to, the Zoning Code. 

Permission may be given by the City Manager or his designate for a person 
to temporarily keep, care or protect a wild animal native to the State which 
has been deemed to be homeless, provided it is under the care of a licensed 
veterinarian.  

(d) No person shall own, harbor or keep any animal listed AS THREATENED 
OR ENDANGERED by the Federal ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT, UNLESS 
LICENSED BY THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE TO 
OWN, HARBOR OR KEEP ANY SUCH ANIMAL, OR BY THE 
CONVENTION ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE IN ENDANGERED SPECIES OF 
WILD FAUNA AND FLORA, EXCEPT ANIMALS HELD UNDER PERMITS 
ISSUED BY THE U.S, FISH & WILDLIFE SERVICE. 

 
Government or considered by the American Humane Society, Local and 

State authorities to be an endangered species.  
(e) Whoever violates any provision of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of 

the fourth degree. Additionally, the Court shall order that such animal be 
removed from the City or be humanely destroyed by a licensed veterinarian, 
the DELAWARE COUNTY Dog Warden, the DELAWARE COUNTY Humane 
Society, a COUNTY OR CITY law enforcement officer or the CITY Community 
Service Officer.  

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 12    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-04    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE NAMING OF THE ACCESS ROAD 
EXTENDING FROM CRYSTAL PETAL DRIVE TO CHESHIRE ROAD AND 
ALIGNED PARALLEL TO COLUMBUS PIKE TO KINGMAN HILL DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This access road extends from Crystal Petal Drive to Cheshire Road and is 
aligned parallel to Columbus Pike (US23).  The access road is unnamed and 
currently serves as an access road for five (5) properties which are addressed off 
Columbus Pike.  Residents along this access road have petitioned the City of 
Delaware to name the roadway “Kingman Hill Drive”.  This change is also 
recommended by City Staff to deter confusion for emergency response to these 
properties and any incident that occurs along this roadway. If the naming of the 
access road is approved, this change will be forwarded to the County Recorder’s 
office as well as the Delaware Post Office notifying both entities of the new street 
name.  Each of the five (5) properties will maintain the same house number, and 
for a period of two (2) years be able to receive mail addressed to both Kingman 
Hill Drive and Columbus Pike.  After two (2) years, only the Kingman Hill Drive 
address will be recognized.  The CMPM property (former Floyd Brown building) 
located at the NE corner of Cheshire and proposed Kingman Hill Drive is 
unaffected by this legislation as its access is off of Cheshire Road and will 
continue to maintain its address off Columbus Pike. 
 
 



REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per ORC 723.04: The legislative authority of a municipal corporation, upon 
being satisfied that there is good cause for such change of name, should be 
ordinance, declare the name thereof changed. The original ordinance or a 
certified copy thereof shall be recorded in the official records of the county 
recorder. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the August 15, 2016 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $100.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Letters to Property Owners  
Petition from Residents 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE NAMING OF THE 
ACCESS ROAD EXTENDING FROM CRYSTAL PETAL 
DRIVE TO CHESHIRE ROAD AND ALIGNED 
PARALLEL TO COLUMBUS PIKE TO KINGMAN HILL 
DRIVE. 
 

WHEREAS, it has been petitioned by residents to name the access road 
Kingman Hill Drive; and 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined by Chief Building Official that the 

access road shall have a recorded street name to deter confusion for emergency 
response; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed this 

modification by a 3-0 vote at the August 15, 2016 meeting;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the access road extending from Crystal Petal Drive to 
Cheshire Road and aligned parallel to Columbus Pike be named Kingman Hill 
Drive. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 





























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 13    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-06 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       Public Comment to be held  
       February 27, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DOWNTOWN PARKING STUDY, DATED 
FEBRUARY 6, 2017 SUBMITTED BY MKSK CONSULTANTS  
 
BACKGROUND: The City of Delaware entered into a contract in March of 2016 
with MKSK to perform a parking study for the downtown area.  The study and 
the recommendations were presented to City Council at their February 6, 2017 
Work Session, at which time Council agreed to formally consider adopting the 
plan and invite public comment on it.  Council consideration and action for the 
resolution is scheduled, along with a time for public comment, on February 27, 
2017.      
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): Various 
 
POLICY CHANGES: Various 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval After Public Comment 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
City of Delaware Implementation Matrix Plan and Parking Study 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-06 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DOWNTOWN 
PARKING STUDY, DATED FEBRUARY 6, 2017 
SUBMITTED BY MKSK CONSULTANTS. 

 
WHEREAS, a need exists to make changes to the current downtown parking 

needs and inventory; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware entered into an agreement with MKSK 

Consultants in March of 2016 to perform a comprehensive parking study for the 
City’s downtown; and   
 
 WHEREAS, City Council reviewed the parking needs assessment by MKSK 
Consultants and the proposed implementation plan and matrix at the Council 
Work Session on February 6, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, If approved, the City will establish an internal working group 
that will consult with a downtown advocacy group made up of volunteers with 
varying interests in downtown parking to put into action the recommendations 
contained within the City of Delaware Implementation plan/ matrix and Parking 
study; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council established February 27, 2017 at 7:45 p.m. as a time for 
the general public to voice their questions, comments or concerns regarding the 
downtown parking. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The attached City of Delaware Implementation Plan/ Matrix 
and Parking study is here by accepted by City Council.   

 
SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 

 
PASSED:                                    , 2017  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________  ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 













































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 14    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-05    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND  FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR OHIO WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR AN HONORS 
HOUSE ON APPROXIMATELY 0.78 ACRES LOCATED AT 81 OAK HILL AVENUE 
ZONED PO/I (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ohio Wesleyan University received a generous donation to replace the existing 
Honors House structure and build a new larger building. The existing Honors 
House at 81 Oak Hill Avenue, driveway and appurtenances would be razed and 
a new building constructed that would encompass the existing lot and the area 
just east of the lot. The new building would accommodate 27 students in the 
OWU Honors Program while 11 students are accommodated in the existing 
structure which is dated and in need of major repairs. 

The new 7,123 square foot Honors House would have access from Oak Hill 
Avenue from an existing curb cut just east of the proposed building that accesses 
campus facilities.  It would be setback approximately 38 feet from Oak Hill 
Avenue which is about the same distance as the razed Honors House while the 
new building would be setback approximately 23 feet from the western property 
line while the razed house was only setback 2 to 3 feet (the current zoning 



required side yard setback is 9 feet).  An 8 foot wide access walk with two sets of 
steps would access the new building from the existing sidewalk along Oak Hill 
Avenue. In the rear of the building would be a patio with access to the existing 
access drive just east of the building. The design character of the Honors House 
would mimic the existing single family housing stock in this area with two story 
elevations, front porches, gabled pitch roofs, etc., and would have to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1171.08 Residential Design Criteria. The building 
would have a stone veneer wainscoting with fiber cement siding comprising the 
remainder of the elevation. The color scheme of the Honors House would be blue 
and yellow. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions after second 
reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND  FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
OHIO WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR AN HONORS 
HOUSE ON APPROXIMATELY 0.78 ACRES LOCATED AT 
81 OAK HILL AVENUE ZONED PO/I (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
February 1, 2017, recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final 
Development Plan for Ohio Wesleyan University for an Honors House on 
approximately 0.78 acres located at 81 Oak Hill Avenue zoned PO/I (Planned 
Office/Institutional District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) (PC 2017-
0016); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Ohio Wesleyan University for an Honors House on approximately 0.78 acres 
located at 81 Oak Hill Avenue zoned PO/I (Planned Office/Institutional District) 
and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted, with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. Seven parking spaces at 15 Williams Drive shall be allocated for the 
Honors House prior to final occupancy approval.  

3. The new Honors House shall achieve compliance with the submitted 
building elevations and Chapter 1171.08 Residential Design Standards. 

4. 6 caliper inches of trees shall be replaced for the Honors House to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and are 
allowed to be planted elsewhere on the campus per the previously approved 
OWU planting methodology.  

5. The landscape plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 



6. The lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief 
Building Official. 

7. The two parcels shall be consolidated into a single lot or re-platted into two 
lots prior to the occupancy permit of the Honors House. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



























































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-06    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR OHIO 
WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR A PHASE 3 SMALL LIVING UNIT (SLU) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.373 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF ROWLAND 
AVENUE BETWEEN SOUTH WASHINGTON STREET AND SOUTH LIBERTY 
STREET ON PROPERTY  ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 In August 2015, Ohio Wesleyan University received a Rezoning Amendment, 
Conditional Use Permit, and Preliminary Development Plan for Phases 1-5 and 
Phase 1 Final Development Plan approval by the Planning Commission and City 
Council. Then in June 2016 the Phase 2 SLU received Final Development Plan 
approval by the Planning Commission and City Council. The Phase 1 SLU is 
constructed and occupied while the Phase 2 SLU is constructed but not 
occupied. Now Ohio Wesleyan University is proposing the Phase 3 SLU which is 
located between the two aforementioned SLU’s. From a staff’s perspective, a 
minor change to the Preliminary Development Plan is proposed by moving the 
Phase 4 SLU from Rowland Avenue to along South Liberty Street just north of 
the Phase 1 SLU (this is where the proposed detention basin was in the previous 
plan) because of a private access easement along Rowland Avenue makes it 
prohibitive to construct four SLU’s along the frontage of Rowland Avenue as well 
as having more detailed storm water information indicating that a pond is not 
needed as originally contemplated.  



 
The new SLU would have access from Rowland Avenue and would be two stories 
in height and have 24 units that encompass 5,763 square feet with a maroon 
and grey color scheme.  In addition, there would be private sidewalks on each 
side and behind the Phase 3 SLU that would connect to the adjacent SLU’s and 
to the public sidewalk along Rowland Avenue. The design character of the Phase 
3 SLU would mimic the other two constructed SLU’s and the existing single 
family housing stock in the area with two story elevations, front porches, gabled 
pitch roofs, etc., per the attached building elevations and would have to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1171.08 Residential Design Criteria.  
 
The general shared long term desire is to vacate Rowland Avenue for vehicular 
travel and extend the “jaywalk” concept in this area.  The logistics of vacating 
(abandoning) the public street would have to be vetted with all City departments 
and the University to determine the feasibility of such request as the University 
and the City are the only two adjacent property owners at this time. The City and 
Ohio Wesleyan University have had more internal detailed discussions about the 
vacation of the street since June 2016 (the application date of the Phase 2 SLU) 
and which are leading to a formal proposal for the City to review in the near 
future. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval with the documented conditions after second 
reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR OHIO WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY FOR A 
PHASE 3 SMALL LIVING UNIT (SLU) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.373 ACRES LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF ROWLAND AVENUE BETWEEN 
SOUTH WASHINGTON STREET AND SOUTH LIBERTY 
STREET ON PROPERTY  ZONED PO/I PMU (PLANNED 
OFFICE/INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
February 1, 2017, recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Ohio 
Wesleyan University for a Phase 3 Small Living Unit (SLU) on approximately 1.373 
acres located on the north side of Rowland Avenue between South Washington 
Street and South Liberty Street on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned 
Office/Institutional District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) (PC 2017-
0088); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Ohio Wesleyan University 
for a Phase 3 Small Living Unit (SLU) on approximately 1.373 acres located on the 
north side of Rowland Avenue between South Washington Street and South 
Liberty Street on property zoned PO/I PMU (Planned Office/Institutional District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted, with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. Eleven parking spaces at the Hamilton Williams Campus Center shall be 
allocated for the Phase 3 SLU prior to final occupancy approval.  

3. The new SLU shall achieve compliance with the design standards of the 
approved development text per the submitted building elevation. 

4. 196 caliper inches of trees shall be replaced for the Phase 3 SLU to achieve 
compliance with Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations and are 



allowed to be planted elsewhere on the campus per the previously approved 
OWU planting methodology.  

5. OWU shall plant street trees on Rowland Avenue concurrent with 
construction of this final SLU on Rowland Avenue. 

6. The landscape plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission. 

7. The lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief 
Building Official. 

8. The seven parcels shall be consolidated prior to the occupancy permit of the 
Phase 3 SLU. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 









































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 16    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-07    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR HOMEROCK 
LLC FOR BRAUMILLER WOODS SECTION 3 CONSISTING OF 38 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 13.408 ACRES ZONED R-2 (ONE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON COLONY RIDGE DRIVE AND 
BUENA PARK DRIVE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The entire Braumiller Woods Subdivision consists of 123 single-family lots on 
49.7 acres with a gross density of 2.47 dwelling units per acre. City Council 
approved the Preliminary Subdivision Plat on January 12, 2004 (Ord. 04-12) 
and Final Subdivision Plat for Section 1 on December 20, 2004 (Ord. 04-215) 
which consists of 35 single-family lots. The Final Subdivision Plat for Section 2 
was approved by City Council on March 12, 2012 (Ord 12-19) which consisted 
of  23 lots while Section 2A  was approved by City Council on March 10, 2014 
(Ord 14-15) which also contained 23 lots. Section 3 is the final section and 
would contain 38 single family lots instead of the originally 42 lots in this 
section. Therefore the overall number of lots in the subdivision has been 
reduced from 123 to 119 single family lots.  
 
Section 3 is located south of Section 2A with Colony Ridge Drive extending in a 
southerly and then easterly direction from Section 2A to Glenn Parkway and 
with Buena Park Drive extending in a southerly direction to connect to Colony 
Ridge Drive. The lots range in size from 0.233 to 0.588 acres with a minimum 



lot width of 70 feet and depth of 145 feet (10,150 square feet – 0.233 acre).  The 
front yard setbacks are 35 feet, side yard setbacks are 10 feet and the rear yard 
setbacks are 45 feet.  All the houses have to achieve compliance with the City 
adopted Residential Design Criteria and Performance Standards in Section 
1171.08 of the Planning & Zoning Code which includes  at least 35% of the 
front elevation of all homes shall be finished with natural materials including 
brick, natural or cultured stone, cedar siding or cement fiber siding (i.e. Hardi-
plank). The developer would be required to contribute $26,808.18 to achieve 
compliance with the parkland dedication requirements and $43,451.21 to 
achieve compliance with tree replacement requirements which were both 
agreed to during the approval of the Preliminary Subdivision Plat in 2004. Also, 
the plan identifies a landscape buffer along Glenn Parkway which shall be 
maintained by the Homeowners Association. In addition, the landscape and 
lighting plans have been approved by the Shade Tree Commission and Chief 
Building Official respectively.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111.04 Final Plat Submission 
Requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-1 on February 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions at 
second reading. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-07 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT FOR HOMEROCK LLC FOR BRAUMILLER WOODS 
SECTION 3 CONSISTING OF 38 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON APPROXIMATELY 13.408 ACRES ZONED R-2 (ONE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON 
COLONY RIDGE DRIVE AND BUENA PARK DRIVE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of February 1, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat for Homerock LLC for 
Braumiller Woods Section 3 consisting of 38 single family lots on approximately 
13.408 acres zoned R-2 (One Family Residential District) and located on Colony 
Ridge Drive and Buena Park Drive (PC 2017-0017); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat for Homerock LLC for 
Braumiller Woods Section 3 consisting of 38 single family lots on approximately 
13.408 acres zoned R-2 (One Family Residential District) and located on Colony 
Ridge Drive and Buena Park Drive, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 

stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the layout 
and details of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or 
change based on the final technical review by the Engineering Department.  

2. The Transportation Contribution shall be due and payable at the time of 
issuance of the building permits, at a cost of $1,000 per lot 

3. The house construction shall comply with Chapter 1171.08 Residential 
Development Design Criteria and Performances Standards and the rezoning 
architectural design standards approved in the rezoning of the property. 

4. The developer shall pay $26,808.18 to satisfy the parkland dedication 
requirement in Section 3 prior to the first building permit approval. 

5. The developer shall pay $43,451.21 to satisfy the tree replacement 
requirement in Section 3 prior to the first building permit approval. 

6. A lighting plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief 
Building Official. 



7. The landscaping shall be installed per Overall Landscaping/Tree 
Replacement Plan that was approved by the Shade Tree Commission on 
February 28, 2006. 

8. If an entrance sign is proposed at the intersection of Colony Ridge Drive and 
Glenn Parkway, it shall be review and approved by staff along with being 
maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

9. The landscaping along Glenn Parkway shall be maintained by the 
Homeowners Association.  

10. A condition on the plat shall identify this section as being located in the 
Delaware South New Community Authority and within the Braumiller Tax 
Increment Finance (TIF) District.  

11. The City right-of-way easement along Glenn Parkway (rear of lots 11772-
1177) shall be included on the final subdivision plat. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 17    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-14 
 
READING:  FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
       Public Comment to be held  
                                                              March 13, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC 
CONTROL SIGNAGE TO ESTABLISH A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE FROM 105 
FEET WEST OF THISTLE DRIVE TO 95 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE 
LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE INTERSECTION AND THE 
EXTENSION OF THE NO PARKING HERE TO CORNER ZONE ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE TO 40 FEET WEST 
OF THISTLE DRIVE AND 25 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE LEXINGTON 
BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE INTERSECTION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A resident requested the City to evaluate the curved roadway section of Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive from Thistle Drive to just south of the Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection in regards to speeding and accident 
history.  Staff reviewed the accident history and noted there have been five (5) 
accidents in the past five (5) years along this section of roadway.  Staff also 
collected speed data at 684 Buehler Drive and 200 Lexington Boulevard and 
found the 85th percentile speed to be 32 mph and 31 mph respectively.  Due to 
the accident history and high speeds along this section of Lexington Boulevard 
and Buehler Drive, staff recommended that traffic calming measures be 
implemented to improve the safety and reduce vehicular speeds along the curve.  



The traffic calming measures recommended include the installation of a No 
Parking Anytime Zone on the south side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler 
Drive from 105 feet west of Thistle Drive to 95 feet southeast of the Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive intersection and an extension of the No Parking 
Here to Corner Zone on the north side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
to 40 feet west of Thistle Drive and 25 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard 
and Buehler Drive intersection.  Additional no parking here to corner signage 
will be installed per codified ordinance 351.03 on the north side of Lexington 
Boulevard and Buehler Drive at the two intersections along the curve.  Pavement 
markings will also be installed to effectively narrow the travel lanes to encourage 
lower speeds. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the February 20, 2017 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost to install the signage and pavement markings is estimated at $2,500.00 
to come out of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating and 
professional services budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-14 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION 
OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE TO 
ESTABLISH A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND 
BUEHLER DRIVE FROM 105 FEET WEST OF 
THISTLE DRIVE TO 95 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE 
LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE 
INTERSECTION AND THE EXTENSION OF THE NO 
PARKING HERE TO CORNER ZONE ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF LEXINGTON BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER 
DRIVE TO 40 FEET WEST OF THISTLE DRIVE AND 
25 FEET SOUTHEAST OF THE LEXINGTON 
BOULEVARD AND BUEHLER DRIVE INTERSECTION. 
 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Zones have been requested so as to 
implement traffic calming measures to improve safety and reduce vehicular 
speeds on Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive; and 

 
WHEREAS, there is no current signage prohibiting parking in this area; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed this 

modification by a 3-0 vote at the February 20, 2017 meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The No Parking Anytime Zone will be established on the 
south side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive from 105 feet west of 
Thistle Drive to 95 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
intersection and the No Parking Here to Corner Zone will be extended on the 
north side of Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive to 40 feet west of Thistle 
Drive and 25 feet southeast of the Lexington Boulevard and Buehler Drive 
intersection. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 18    DATE: 02/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-15 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE USER FEES 
FOR HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Following discussion regarding revenue and expenditures at the Hidden Valley 
Golf Course, the Hidden Valley Working Group reviewed current the current 
users rate structure and suggested that some be altered for the 2017 season. 
The proposed changes were forwarded to the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board for their consideration. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
endorsed the proposed changes for the 2017 season and requested City Council’s 
adoption.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To increase revenues at Hidden Valley Golf Course and to align prices to be 
competitive with regional averages. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Hidden Valley Working Group proposed the changes at their November 29, 
2016, meeting and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorsed the 
changes at their January 17, 2017, meeting. 
 
 
 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The changes should increase the total revenue generated at the Hidden Valley 
Golf Course during the 2017 season as a means of reducing the amount of the 
general fund transfer to offset the expenditures. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Hidden Valley Working Group Notes of November 29, 2016 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Motion Summary of January 17, 2017 
2016 Regional Golf Course Rate Comparison 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-15 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO THE USER FEES FOR HIDDEN VALLEY 
GOLF COURSE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidden Valley Working Group reviewed the current rate 

structure for user fees at Hidden Valley Golf Course; and 
 

WHEREAS, recommended changes to the existing rate structure for the 
2017 season to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorses the 

recommend rate structure changes for the 2017 season as outlined in the 
attached exhibit; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  Adopt the proposed rate structure changes for the 2017 
season at Hidden Valley Golf Course as outlined in the attached exhibit. 

 
That this resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 ACCEPT____ REJECT____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 19    DATE: 2/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-08    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 20.445 ACRES OF LAND 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE DELAWARE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (COUGHLIN’S CROSSING) ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL R. 
SHADE,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution 16-1220 
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution 16-48 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
20.445 ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
(COUGHLIN’S CROSSING) ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL 
R. SHADE,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on December 1, 2016 (See attached)  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 20.445 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Delaware Development Plan (Coughlin’s Crossing) 
Annexation Michael R. Shade, agent for the petitioners. 
 

SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 
ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 



 
VOTE ON RULES SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 20    DATE: 2/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-09    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 1.7023 ACRES OF LAND 
MORE OR LESS, DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN AS THE DELAWARE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (COUGHLIN’S CROSSING RIGHT-OF-WAY) ANNEXATION 
BY MICHAEL R. SHADE,  AGENT FOR THE PETITIONERS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 



 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dave Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
  
ATTACHMENT(S) 
County Resolution 16-1255 
Petition 
Map 
City Resolution 16-50 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF 
1.7023 ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS, 
DESCRIPTION AND MAP ARE ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBITS “A” AND “B” FOR THE ANNEXATION KNOWN 
AS THE DELAWARE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
(COUGHLIN’S CROSSING RIGHT-OF-WAY) 
ANNEXATION BY MICHAEL R. SHADE,  AGENT FOR 
THE PETITIONERS. 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation applied for in the petition to the 

Delaware County Commissioners has been approved, by them for annexation to 
the City of Delaware on December 12, 2016 (See attached)  The territory to be 
annexed is described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation, with 
an accurate map of the territory, together with the petition of annexation and 
other papers relating to the proceedings of the County Commissioners, are on file 
with the Clerk of Council, and have been for more than sixty days. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Council hereby accepts the annexation of 1.7023 acres of 
land, description and plat of which are hereby attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” on 
the annexation known as the Delaware Development Plan (Coughlin’s Crossing 
Right-of-Way) Annexation Michael R. Shade, agent for the petitioners. 
 

SECTION 2.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to make five copies of this 
ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the map accompanying the 
petition for annexation, a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the Board of 
County Commissioners relating thereto, and a certificate as to the correctness 
thereof. The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the Secretary of State, 
and shall file notice of annexation with the Board of Elections, the County Auditor, 
the County Recorder, and the County Engineer within thirty days after it becomes 
effective, and the Clerk shall do all other things required by law. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 



including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

VOTE ON RULES SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 21    DATE: 2/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-10    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE 
MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $11,015,000 IN 
ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING 
THE COSTS OF VARIOUS PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS, 
TOGETHER WITH ALL RELATED APPURTENANCES THERETO, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

BACKGROUND: 
This ordinance authorizes the re-issuance of one-year bond anticipation notes 
related to the Glenn Road New Community Authority (NCA) financing 
($10,565,000) and the City’s sidewalk maintenance program ($450,000).  The 
Glenn Road notes have been re-issued each year since the original borrowing in 
2005.  The 2017 amount represents a reduction in the outstanding principal of 
$650,000.  The sidewalk notes are being re-issued to facilitate spreading the city 
cost of the sidewalk improvement program over several years.  When the project 
is complete this year it is estimated that we will continue to allocate $125,000 
per year through 2021 in our CIP to pay off the outstanding notes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The current outstanding bond anticipation notes issued last year mature on 
April 13, 2017.  This legislation is needed to generate the funds to pay off the 
maturing principal amount of $11,665,000.  The City’s financing strategy relative 



to the Glenn Road NCA debt is to continue the practice of issuing one year notes 
with gradual pay down of principal. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Included in 2017 Budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Go to second reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo from Finance Director 
Fiscal Officer’s Certificate 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-10 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE 
AND SALE OF NOTES IN THE MAXIMUM 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $11,015,000 IN 
ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF VARIOUS 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS, 
TOGETHER WITH ALL RELATED APPURTENANCES 
THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 16-13 passed March 14, 2016, 
notes in anticipation of bonds in the aggregate amount of $11,665,000, dated 
April 14, 2016 (the “Outstanding Notes”), were issued for the component 
purposes stated in Section 1, to mature on April 13, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines that the City should retire 
the Outstanding Notes with the proceeds of the Notes described in Section 3 
and other funds available to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance, as fiscal officer of this City, has 
certified to this Council that the estimated life or period of usefulness of each 
component of the Improvement described in Section 1 is at least five years, and 
(i) the estimated maximum maturity of the $2,135,000 portion of the Bonds 
described in clause (a) of Section 1 is thirteen (13) years, and the maximum 
maturity of the portion of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in 
anticipation of that portion of the Bonds, is July 28, 2025, (ii) the estimated 
maximum maturity of the $4,250,000 portion of the Bonds described in clause 
(a) of Section 1 is fourteen (14) years, and the maximum maturity of the portion 
of the Notes described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of that portion 
of the Bonds, is May 11, 2026, (iii) the estimated maximum maturity of the 
$4,180,000 portion of the Bonds described in clause (b) of Section 1 is 
seventeen (17) years, and the maximum maturity of the portion of the Notes 
described in Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of that portion of the Bonds, 
is December 22, 2029 and (iv) the estimated maximum maturity of the 
$450,000 portion of the Bonds described in clause (c) of Section 1 is twenty 
(20) years, and the maximum maturity of the portion of the Notes described in 
Section 3, to be issued in anticipation of that portion of the Bonds, is April 22, 
2034; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by The Council of The City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 

Section 1.  It is necessary to issue bonds of this City in the maximum 
aggregate principal amount of $11,015,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of 
paying the costs of (a) constructing Glenn Road between certain termini by 



- 2 - 

constructing, excavating, grading and paving, installing drainage, sanitary 
sewer laterals, street lighting, conduit, curbs and gutters, signage, traffic 
pavement markings, street signs, landscaping, and acquiring interests in real 
estate, together with all necessary appurtenances thereto, (b) improving the 
intersection of U.S. Route 23 and Peachblow Road by constructing, excavating, 
grading and paving, installing drainage, street lighting, conduit, signalization, 
curbs and gutters, signage, traffic pavement markings, landscaping, and 
acquiring interests in real estate, together with all necessary appurtenances 
thereto and (c) the construction, renovation and improvement of pedestrian 
sidewalks throughout the City, together with all necessary appurtenances 
thereto (collectively, the “Improvement”). 

Section 2.  The Bonds shall be dated approximately April 1, 2018, shall 
bear interest at the now estimated rate of 6.00% per year, payable 
semiannually until the principal amount is paid, and are estimated to mature 
in (i) thirteen (13) annual principal installments with respect to the $2,135,000 
portion of the Bonds allocated to the component purpose described in 
clause (a) of Section 1, (ii) fourteen (14) annual principal installments with 
respect to the $4,250,000 portion of the Bonds allocated to the component 
purpose described in clause (a) of Section 1, (iii) seventeen (17) annual 
principal installments with respect to the $4,180,000 portion of the Bonds 
allocated to the component purpose described in clause (b) of Section 1 and (iv) 
twenty (20) annual principal installments with respect to the $450,000 portion 
of the Bonds allocated to the component purpose described in clause (c) of 
Section 1, and in each case on December 1 of each year.  The portion of the 
Bonds issued for the component purposes described in clauses (a) and (b) of 
Section 1 shall mature in such amounts that the total principal and interest 
payments on that portion of the Bonds in any fiscal year in which principal is 
payable is not more than three times the amount of those payments in any 
other fiscal year.  The portion of the Bonds issued for the component purpose 
described in clause (c) of Section 1 shall mature in such amounts that the total 
principal and interest payments on that portion of the Bonds in any fiscal year 
in which principal is payable shall be substantially equal.  The first principal 
payment of the Bonds is estimated to be December 1, 2018. 

Section 3.  It is necessary to issue and this Council determines that 
notes in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $11,015,000 (the “Notes”) 
shall be issued in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds for the purpose 
described in Section 1 and to retire, together with other funds available to the 
City, the Outstanding Notes and to pay any financing costs.  The aggregate 
principal amount of Notes to be issued (not to exceed the stated maximum 
amount) shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the certificate 
awarding the Notes in accordance with Section 6 of this Ordinance (the 
“Certificate of Award”) as the amount which, along with other available funds of 
the City, is necessary to provide for the retirement of the Outstanding Notes 
and to pay any financing costs.  The Notes shall be dated the date of issuance 



- 3 - 

and shall mature not more than one year following the date of issuance, 
provided that the Director of Finance shall establish the maturity date in the 
Certificate of Award.  The Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to 
exceed 6.00% per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve 30-day months), payable at maturity and until the principal amount is 
paid or payment is provided for.  The rate or rates of interest on the Notes shall 
be determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award in 
accordance with Section 6 of this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  The debt charges on the Notes shall be payable in lawful 
money of the United States of America, or in Federal Reserve funds of the 
United States of America as determined by the Director of Finance in the 
Certificate of Award, and shall be payable, without deduction for services of the 
City’s paying agent, at the office of a bank or trust company designated by the 
Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award after determining that the 
payment at that bank or trust company will not endanger the funds or 
securities of the City and that proper procedures and safeguards are available 
for that purpose or at the office of the Director of Finance if agreed to by the 
Director of Finance and the original purchaser (the “Paying Agent”).  The 
Director of Finance is authorized, to the extent necessary or appropriate, to 
enter into an agreement with the Paying Agent in connection with the services 
to be provided by the Paying Agent after determining that the signing thereof 
will not endanger the funds or securities of the City. 

Section 5.  The Notes shall be signed by the City Manager and Director of 
Finance, in the name of the City and in their official capacities, provided that 
one of those signatures may be a facsimile.  The Notes shall be issued in 
minimum denominations of $100,000 (and may be issued in denominations in 
such amounts in excess thereof as requested by the original purchaser and 
approved by the Director of Finance) and with numbers as requested by the 
original purchaser and approved by the Director of Finance.  The entire 
principal amount may be represented by a single note and may be issued as 
fully registered securities (for which the Director of Finance will serve as note 
registrar) and in book entry or other uncertificated form in accordance with 
Section 9.96 and Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code if it is determined by 
the Director of Finance that issuance of fully registered securities in that form 
will facilitate the sale and delivery of the Notes.  The Notes shall not have 
coupons attached, shall be numbered as determined by the Director of Finance 
and shall express upon their faces the purpose, in summary terms, for which 
they are issued and that they are issued pursuant to this Ordinance.  As used 
in this Section and this Ordinance: 

“Book entry form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under 
which (a) the ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes and the principal of 
and interest on the Notes may be transferred only through a book entry, and 
(b) a single physical Note certificate in fully registered form is issued by the City 



- 4 - 

and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as registered owner, with the 
certificate deposited with and “immobilized” in the custody of the Depository or 
its designated agent for that purpose.  The book entry maintained by others 
than the City is the record that identifies the owners of beneficial interests in 
the Notes and that principal and interest. 

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a 
book entry system to record ownership of beneficial interests in the Notes or 
the principal of and interest on the Notes, and to effect transfers of the Notes, 
in book entry form, and includes and means initially The Depository Trust 
Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, New York. 

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under 
a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and 
trust companies, and clearing corporations. 

The Notes may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system 
and, if and as long as a book entry system is utilized, (a) the Notes may be 
issued in the form of a single Note made payable to the Depository or its 
nominee and immobilized in the custody of the Depository or its agent for that 
purpose; (b) the beneficial owners in book entry form shall have no right to 
receive the Notes in the form of physical securities or certificates; (c) ownership 
of beneficial interests in book entry form shall be shown by book entry on the 
system maintained and operated by the Depository and its Participants, and 
transfers of the ownership of beneficial interests shall be made only by book 
entry by the Depository and its Participants; and (d) the Notes as such shall 
not be transferable or exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository 
or to another nominee of a Depository, without further action by the City. 

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for 
the Notes for use in a book entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt 
to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another 
qualified Depository.  If the Director of Finance does not or is unable to do so, 
the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of the beneficial 
owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, 
shall permit withdrawal of the Notes from the Depository, and shall cause the 
Notes in bearer or payable form to be signed by the officers authorized to sign 
the Notes and delivered to the assigns of the Depository or its nominee, all at 
the cost and expense (including any costs of printing), if the event is not the 
result of City action or inaction, of those persons requesting such issuance. 

The Director of Finance is also hereby authorized and directed, to the 
extent necessary or required, to enter into any agreements determined 
necessary in connection with the book entry system for the Notes, after 



- 5 - 

determining that the signing thereof will not endanger the funds or securities of 
the City. 

Section 6.  The Notes shall be sold at not less than par plus accrued 
interest (if any) at private sale by the Director of Finance in accordance with 
law and the provisions of this Ordinance.  The Director of Finance shall sign 
the Certificate of Award referred to in Section 3 fixing the interest rate or rates 
which the Notes shall bear and evidencing that sale to the original purchaser, 
cause the Notes to be prepared, and have the Notes signed and delivered, 
together with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of 
the Notes if requested by the original purchaser, to the original purchaser upon 
payment of the purchase price.  The City Manager, the Director of Finance, the 
City Attorney, the City Clerk and other City officials, as appropriate, are each 
authorized and directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements 
and other documents and instruments and to take such actions as are 
necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this 
Ordinance.  The Director of Finance is authorized, if it is determined to be in 
the best interest of the City, to combine the issue of Notes with one or more 
other note issues of the City into a consolidated note issue pursuant to 
Section 133.30(B) of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 7.  The proceeds from the sale of the Notes received by the City 
(or withheld by the original purchaser on behalf of the City) shall be paid into 
the proper fund or funds, and those proceeds are appropriated and shall be 
used for the purpose for which the Notes are being issued.  The Certificate of 
Award may authorize the original purchaser to withhold certain proceeds from 
the sale of the Notes to provide for the payment of certain financing costs on 
behalf of the City.  Any portion of those proceeds received by the City (after 
payment of those financing costs) representing premium or accrued interest 
shall be paid into the Bond Retirement Fund. 

Section 8.  The par value to be received from the sale of the Bonds or of 
any renewal notes and any excess funds resulting from the issuance of the 
Notes shall, to the extent necessary, be used to pay the debt charges on the 
Notes at maturity and are pledged for that purpose. 

Section 9.  During the year or years in which the Notes are outstanding, 
there shall be levied on all the taxable property in the City, in addition to all 
other taxes, the same tax that would have been levied if the Bonds had been 
issued without the prior issuance of the Notes.  The tax shall be within the ten-
mill limitation imposed by law, shall be and is ordered computed, certified, 
levied and extended upon the tax duplicate and collected by the same officers, 
in the same manner, and at the same time that taxes for general purposes for 
each of those years are certified, levied, extended and collected, and shall be 
placed before and in preference to all other items and for the full amount 
thereof.  The proceeds of the tax levy shall be placed in the Bond Retirement 



- 6 - 

Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the debt charges on the 
Notes or the Bonds when and as the same fall due. 

In each year to the extent receipts from the municipal income tax are 
available for the payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the Bonds and 
are appropriated for that purpose, the amount of the tax shall be reduced by 
the amount of such receipts so available and appropriated in compliance with 
the following covenant.  To the extent necessary, the debt charges on the Notes 
or the Bonds shall be paid from municipal income taxes lawfully available 
therefor under the Constitution and the laws of the State of Ohio and the 
Charter of the City; and the City hereby covenants, subject and pursuant to 
such authority, including particularly Section 133.05(B)(7) of the Ohio Revised 
Code, to appropriate annually from such municipal income taxes such amount 
as is necessary to meet such annual debt charges. 

Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the 
irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit and general property taxing power 
of the City to the prompt payment of the debt charges on the Notes or the 
Bonds. 

Section 10.  The City covenants that it will use, and will restrict the use 
and investment of, the proceeds of the Notes in such manner and to such 
extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Notes will not (i) constitute private 
activity bonds or arbitrage bonds under Sections 141 or 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) or (ii) be treated other than as 
bonds the interest on which is excluded from gross income under Section 103 
of the Code, and (b) the interest on the Notes will not be an item of tax 
preference under Section 57 of the Code. 

The City further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such 
actions that may be required of it for the interest on the Notes to be and remain 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (b) it will not take 
or authorize to be taken any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion, 
and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of compliance, (i) 
apply the proceeds of the Notes to the governmental purpose of the borrowing, 
(ii) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely and adequate 
payments to the federal government, (iv) maintain books and records and make 
calculations and reports and (v) refrain from certain uses of those proceeds, 
and, as applicable, of property financed with such proceeds, all in such 
manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that interest 
under the Code. 

The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having 
responsibility for issuance of the Notes is hereby authorized (a) to make or 
effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver 
on behalf of the City with respect to the Notes as the City is permitted to or 



- 7 - 

required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without 
limitation thereto, any of the elections available under Section 148 of the Code, 
for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or 
status of the Notes or interest thereon or assisting compliance with 
requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such 
compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties with respect 
to the Notes, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making 
computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating 
those amounts or payments with respect to the Notes, which action shall be in 
writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or 
obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and 
certifications of and on behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the 
exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the 
Notes, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the City, for 
inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Notes, setting forth the 
reasonable expectations of the City regarding the amount and use of all the 
proceeds of the Notes, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they 
are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of 
the interest on and the tax status of the Notes.  The Director of Finance or any 
other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance of the Notes is 
specifically authorized to designate the Notes as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” if such designation is applicable and desirable, and to make any 
related necessary representations and covenants. 

Each covenant made in this Section with respect to the Notes is also 
made with respect to all issues any portion of the debt service on which is paid 
from proceeds of the Notes (and, if different, the original issue and any 
refunding issues in a series of refundings), to the extent such compliance is 
necessary to assure the exclusion of interest on the Notes from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, and the officers identified above are authorized 
to take actions with respect to those issues as they are authorized in this 
Section to take with respect to the Notes. 

Section 11.  The Director of Finance is directed to promptly deliver a 
certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Auditor of Delaware County, 
Ohio. 

Section 12.  The Director of Finance is authorized to request a rating for 
the Notes from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or Standard & Poor’s Ratings 
Services, or both, as the Director of Finance determines is in the best interest 
of the City.  The expenditure of the amounts necessary to secure any such 
ratings as well as to pay the other financing costs (as defined in Section 133.01 
of the Ohio Revised Code) in connection with the Notes is hereby authorized 
and approved and the amounts necessary to pay those costs are hereby 
appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if available, and otherwise from 
available moneys in the General Fund. 



- 8 - 

Section 13.  The legal services of the law firm of Squire Patton Boggs (US) 
LLP are hereby retained.  Those legal services shall be in the nature of legal 
advice and recommendations as to the documents and the proceedings in 
connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the Notes and 
securities issued in renewal of the Notes and rendering at delivery related legal 
opinions, all as set forth in the form of engagement letter from that firm which 
is now on file in the office of the City Clerk.  In providing those legal services, 
as an independent contractor and in an attorney-client relationship, that firm 
shall not exercise any administrative discretion on behalf of this City in the 
formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds, enforcement of laws, 
rules and regulations of the State, any county or municipal corporation or of 
this City, or the execution of public trusts.  For those legal services that firm 
shall be paid just and reasonable compensation and shall be reimbursed for 
actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in providing those legal services.  The 
Director of Finance is authorized and directed to make appropriate certification 
as to the availability of funds for those fees and any reimbursement and to 
issue an appropriate order for their timely payment as written statements are 
submitted by that firm.  The amounts necessary to pay those fees and any 
reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds of the Notes, if 
available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General Fund. 

Section 14.  This Council determines that all acts and conditions 
necessary to be done or performed by the City or to have been met precedent to 
and in the issuing of the Notes in order to make them legal, valid and binding 
general obligations of the City have been performed and have been met, or will 
at the time of delivery of the Notes have been performed and have been met, in 
regular and due form as required by law; that the full faith and credit and 
general property taxing power (as described in Section 9) of the City are 
pledged for the timely payment of the debt charges on the Notes; and that no 
statutory or constitutional limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been 
exceeded in the issuance of the Notes. 

Section 15.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council or any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the 
public, all in compliance with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 

Section 16.  This Ordinance is declared to be an emergency measure 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, property, health, 
safety and welfare of the City, and for the further reason that this Ordinance is 
required to be immediately effective in order to issue and sell the Notes, which 
is necessary to enable the City to timely retire the Outstanding Notes and 



- 9 - 

thereby preserve its credit; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
PASSED:  , 2017 YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 CITY CLERK   MAYOR 
 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 22    DATE: 2/27/17 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-11    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       March 13, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND  913.14 OF CHAPTER 
913 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
ESTABLISHING TAP FEES AND WATER RATES AND REPEALING EXISTING 
SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND 913.14. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This ordinance increases the City’s water utility rates by 6%.  Water rates were 
last increased in 2012.  Operating costs have seen typical inflationary increases 
with the exception of electric costs at the water plant.  As the new membrane 
filtration system came online a few years ago electric costs at the plant have more 
than doubled adding an additional $200,000 to annual operating costs.  The 
ordinance also increases tap fees for installation of water meters on new 
construction.    
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To adjust water rates to the current level of expenditures. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Finance Committee – Recommended bringing rate change ordinance to City 
Council. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



2017 Budget included a small water rate increase. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer 
Brad Stanton 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Go to second reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Memo from Finance Director 
Historical Utility Rate summary 
Utility Funds financial reports 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND  
913.14 OF CHAPTER 913 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO 
ESTABLISHING TAP FEES AND WATER RATES AND 
REPEALING EXISTING SECTIONS 913.03(a) AND 
913.14. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Section 913.03(a) of Chapter 913 of the Codified 
Ordinances of the City of Delaware is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety 
by the following new section: 
 
913.03. – Furnishing service where facilities do not exist. 
 
(a)  At the time of application for new service, the applicant shall pay a tap fee as  
follows: 
 

Size of Tap  
(inches) City Makes Tap  Owner/Contractor Makes Tap 

3/4 or 5/8  $350 $700 + meter cost  Meter + inspection fee  
1 $400 $800 + meter cost  Meter + inspection fee 

Over 1 Total Cost  Meter + inspection fee 
  
     On all services larger than one inch installed by the City, the applicant shall 
pay the tap fee as follows: two hundred dollars ($200) at the time of application 
of the tap and the balance of the tap fee within thirty days of billing. 
 

 
SECTION 2.  That Section 913.14 of Chapter 913 of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Delaware is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety 
by the following new section: 
 
913.14 – Rates for water service inside City. 
 
The following rates shall be charged for water furnished by the City to users 
inside the corporate limits of the City.  The minimum charge for the first 200 
cubic feet per month shall be: 
 

Meter Size  
(inches) 

As of May 1,  
2010 

As of May 1,  
2011 

As of May 1,  
2012 

As of May 1,  
2017 

5/8 $7.97  $9.16  $10.36  $10.98  
3/4 $11.97  $13.77  $15.56  $16.49  
1 $17.71  $20.37  $23.01  $24.39  



Meter Size  
(inches) 

As of May 1,  
2010 

As of May 1,  
2011 

As of May 1,  
2012 

As of May 1,  
2017 

1½ $35.90  $41.29  $46.66  $49.46  
2 $50.20  $57.73  $65.23  $69.14  
3 $103.43  $118.95  $134.41  $142.47  
4 $166.82  $191.84  $216.78  $229.79  
6 $287.17  $330.24  $373.17  $395.56  
8 $505.46  $581.28  $656.84  $696.25  

 
For consumption in excess of the minimum, regardless of meter size charges 
shall be:   

 
 Rate per 100 

Cubic Feet 
Rate per 100 
Cubic Feet 

Rate per 100 
Cubic Feet 

Rate per 100 
Cubic Feet 

Consumption  
(Cubic Feet)* 

As of May 1,  
2010 

As of May 1,  
2011 

As of May 1,  
2012 

As of May 1,  
2017 

Minimum to 3,000 $3.14  $3.61  $4.08  $4.32  
3,001 to 47,000 $2.20  $2.53  $2.86  $3.03  
47,000 and over $1.52  $1.75  $1.98  $2.10  
 
* Consumption is rounded off to nearest 100 cubic feet 
 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
  
   
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       _____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

https://www.municode.com/library/oh/delaware/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHTROFDEOH_ARTIINFOGOPOGE_S4EXPO














  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 23    DATE: 2/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-12    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE REFUSE COLLECTION AND UTILITY 
SERVICES PORTIONS OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND SERVICE 
CHARGES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Annually the City reviews various fees and service charges to determine whether 
the amounts charged are appropriate.  For 2017 staff is recommending changes 
to our refuse rates and to the fee charged for water meters. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To update service fees. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Finance Committee – Recommended bringing the refuse rate change ordinance 
to City Council. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Proposed increase in residential refuse rates and reductions in the dumpster 
rates.  The rate changes will somewhat offset each other although a slight 
increase in total revenue is projected. 
 
 
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
Potential policy changes in the City’s refuse service will be discussed. 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bill Ferrigno 
Dean Stelzer 
Brad Stanton 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Go to a second reading 
   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE REFUSE 
COLLECTION AND UTILITY SERVICES PORTIONS OF 
THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the yearly review of the fees established in Delaware 
Codified Ordinance Section 197.01 it has been determined that the refuse 
collection rates should be amended; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The Refuse Collection and Utility Services portions of 197.02 
are amended as follows: 
 
197.02 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

REFUSE COLLECTION 
SOURCE OF 

FEE 
 

FEE TITLE 
 

AMOUNT 
929.08 Domestic Refuse 

Collection 
$19.73 $20.60 per month 
 
Senior citizen discount rate: $9.87 
$10.30 per month 
 

929.08 Commercial Refuse 
Collection 

$19.73 $20.60 per month for basic 
service consisting of two 32 gallon or 
one 96 gallon tipcart –or- 10 bag tags 
 

929.08 Additional 96 Gallon 
Tipcarts 

2 total tipcarts $39.47 41.20 
3 total tipcarts $59.20 61.80 
4 total tipcarts $78.94 82.40 
5 total tipcarts $98.67 103.00 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Once Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $100.27 85.37 
3 cu. Yds $106.65 94.48 
4 cu. Yds $123.35 103.58 
6 cu. Yds $143.98 121.80 
8 cu. Yds $182.74 140.02 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Twice Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $200.44 170.74 
3 cu. Yds $213.28 188.95 
4 cu. Yds $239.00 207.17 
6 cu. Yds $277.72 243.60 
8 cu. Yds $343.06 280.04 



929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Three Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $298.06 256.10 
3 cu. Yds $319.89 283.43 
4 cu. Yds $354.66 310.75 
6 cu. Yds $411.43 365.41 
8 cu. Yds $507.55 420.06 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Four Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $395.63 341.47 
3 cu. Yds $426.51 377.91 
4 cu. Yds $470.31 414.34 
6 cu. Yds $545.14 487.21 
8 cu. Yds $672.04 560.08 

929.08 Commercial Refuse – 
Containerized Collection 
– Five Per Week 

2 cu. Yds $493.26 426.84 
3 cu. Yds $533.15 472.38 
4 cu. Yds $585.97 517.92 
6 cu. Yds $678.84 609.01 
8 cu. Yds $836.54 700.09 

929.08 Additional pickup – 
Commercial Refuse 
Customers 

2 cu. yds: $23.13 85.37 
3 cu. Yds $24.62 94.48 
4 cu. Yds $28.46 103.58 
6 cu. Yds $33.23 121.80 
8 cu. Yds $42.17 140.02 

929.08 Bag tags (used for trash 
in excess of tipcart) 

1.50 per tag 

929.08 Discontinuation/reactiva
tion/change in service 
level of refuse services 

$12.50  

 
 

UTILITY SERVICES  
SOURCE OF 

FEE  FEE TITLE  AMOUNT  

911.01  Utility Turn On Charge  $12.50  

911.04  Penalty for Nonpayment  5% of bill + $15.00 + [$25.00 for 
returned checks]  

911.05  Delinquent water 
reconnection fee  $25.00  

913.04  Temporary Water Service  
$75.00 for outlet one-inch or less  
$150.00 for outlet greater than one 
inch  

913.05  Temporary water turn 
off/on  $25.00  

913.03  Tap Fees  See Section 913.03  



913.13  Meter Rules and 
Regulations  

Certain water meters shall be 
provided by the Utility 
Department, Water Division at the 
cost of the meter to the City. This 
is currently $90.00 $160 for a 5/8 
— 3/4 meter. 

913.14  Rates for water service 
inside city  See Section 913.14  

913.15  Rates for water service 
outside city  

50% surcharge to schedule of fees 
for water rates.  

913.25  Sale of water for resale  $2.73 per 100 cubic foot  

913.23  Sewer auxiliary meter  $25.00 inspection plus $8.35 
monthly service fee  

917.21  Sewer Capacity Fee  See Section 917.21  

917.14  Sewer Service Charges  See Section 917.14  
 
 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



City Manager Report 20170227 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: February 27, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 January 20 

* Delaware City Schools/Delaware County-North Star Green 
Fleet Analysis 

 January 23 
  * Rotary Meeting 
  * City Council Meeting 
 January 27 
  * Delaware Partnership 
  * Sean Kay Book Signing – Ross Art Museum 
 January 30  
  * Rotary Meeting 
 January 31  
  * Nationwide Children’s Hospital/OhioHealth Reception 
 February 2 
  * 2017 Annual Chamber of Commerce Dinner 
 February 6 
  * Council Work Session 
  February 9 
  * Citizen Academy 
 February 13 
  * City Council Meeting  

* Joint Meeting with Delaware City School Board and Council 
 February 15 
  *  Jegs Meeting 



City Manager Report 20170227 

 February 16 
  * Finance Committee Meeting 
 February 21 
  * 2017 Tax Incentive Review Meeting 

* Delaware Police Department Annual Awards Banquet 
 

4. Required Reading  
 A. Fire Department December Monthly Report 
  
 







CONTRACT APPROVAL – FEBRUARY 27, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Robert A. Schuerger Co., LPA Collection Efforts Varies Finance 
Burgess & Niple Curve Rd. Landfill Leachate Collection 

Equipment 
$8,390 Public Utilities 

Burgess & Niple Curve Rd. Groundwater, Leachate and 
Explosive Gas Monitoring 

$57,480 Public Utilities 

Burgess & Niple Cherry St. Groundwater, Leachate and 
Explosive Gas Monitoring 

$57,480 Public Utilities 
 

Contract Sweepers and Equipment 2017 Street Sweeping $42,870 Public Works 
Burgess & Niple Design of Dogwood Dr. Stormwater 

Culvert 
$42,000 Public Utilities 

MOU- Bilbaran Farms Public Dumpster Placement $1,500 Public Works 
MOU-Genti Koci Public Dumpster Placement $1,500 Public Works 
Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus Maintenance Agreement $1.00 Public Works 
H.J. Umbaugh & Associates Stormwater Rate Study $15,000 Public Utilities 
Burgess & Niple Development of mapping of lead water 

service line for OEPA 
$8,600 Public Utilities 

Burgess & Niple Design of Stratford Rd Culvert Energy 
Dissipation Structure 

$37,500 Public Utilities 

SourcePoint Renew agreement to provide service 
coordination to older adults in Del County 

$46,800 Fire Depart 

Wayne Fischer Maintenance Agreement $1.00 Public Works 
Hamburg Fireworks Display, Inc. July 4th Fireworks $35,000 Fire Depart 
Sims Bros. Inc Recyclables Services N/A Public Works 
     










	01 agenda 20170227
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 minutes work session 20170206
	03 minutes regular meeting 20170213
	04 minutes joint meeting 20170213
	05 finance minutes 20160829
	06 finance minutes 20160919
	07 airport minutes 20160825
	08 parking minutes 20161121
	09 park and rec 20170117 minutes
	10 fact sheet res 17-07 committee appointments
	11 res 17-07 committee appoints
	12 fact sheet res 17-08 mainstreet appointment
	13 res 17-08  main street committee appoint
	14 fact sheet res 17-09 council committee appts
	15 res 17-09 council members com reappointment
	16 fact sheet for 17-10 Frontier
	17 res 17-10 frontier
	18 res 17-10 frontier additional forms
	19 fact sheet res 17-11 police iga city vehicles
	20 res 17-11  police iga city vehicles
	21 res 17-11 police iga city vehicles agreement
	Section 1: Parties to the Agreement
	Section 2: Purpose
	Section 3: Division of Responsibilities
	Section 4: Compensation
	Section 5: Records
	Section 6: Term
	Section 7: Legal Contingencies
	Section 8: Personnel
	Section 9: Equipment and Facilities
	Section 10: Insurance and Liability
	Section 11: Miscellaneous Terms & Conditions

	22 fact sheet res 17-12 early warning system transfer
	23 res 17-12 early warning system transfer
	24 res 17-13 early warning system transfer agreement
	25 fact sheet res 17-13 repeal union street handicap
	26 res 17-13 repeal north union handicap pkg
	27 res 12-42 establish handicapped parking
	28 remove handicap space
	29 liquor permit request
	30 ClarkStationLiquorPermitReport
	31 2017 Refuse Operation Review 2.9.17 DRAFT
	32 fact sheet ord 16-110 amend sec 737.01 circus
	32 ord 16-110 amend 737.01 circus-current
	ORDINANCE NO. 16-110

	33 fact sheet ord 17-02  amend sec 505.23 exotic animals
	34 ord 17-02  amend sec 505.23 exotic animals final
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-02

	35 fact sheet ord 17-04 name access road chrystal petal cheshire rd
	36 ord 17-04 name access road crystal petal cheshire rd
	37 ord 17-04 kingman hill drive memo
	38 kingman hill access rd
	39 fact sheet res 17-06 parking study
	40 res-17-06 parking study
	41 memo jackie walker
	42 memo kent shafer
	43 parking study
	44 fact sheet ord 17-05 OWU Honors House CPFDP
	45 ord 17-05 OWU Honors House CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-05
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	46 ord 17-05 owu honors house cpfdp staff report
	47 fact sheet ord 17-06 OWU SLU's FDP PH3
	48 ord 17-06 OWU Rowland Ave SLUs  FDP Phase 3
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-06
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	49 ord 17- 06 owu fin dev plan slu's  staff report
	50 fact sheet ord 17-07 fin subdiv plat braumiller
	51 ord 17- 07 fin subdiv plat braumiller
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-07
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	52  ord 17-07  fin sub plat braumiller staff report
	53 fact sheet res 17-14 no parking beuhler dr lexington blvd
	54 res 17-14 Buehler Dr  Lexington Blvd No Parking  Traffic Striping Modifications
	55 res 17-14 no parking beuhler dr lexington blvd exhibit
	56 fact sheet res 17- HVGC Rates
	57 res 17-  HVGC Rates
	58 res 17- hidden valley report
	59 fact sheet ord 17- accept annex del dev plan 20.445 coughlin cross
	60 ord 17-08 accept annex del dev plan 20.445 coughlin cross
	61 del dev plan 20.445 annex
	62 fact sheet ord 17- accept annex del dev plan 1.7023 coughlin cross row
	63 ord 17-09 accept annex del dev plan 1.7023 coughlin cross row
	64 del dev plan coughlin cross row 1.7023
	65 fact sheet ord 17-10
	66 ord 17-10 note renewal
	67 ord 17-10 Note Legislation attachments
	68 fact sheet ord 17-11 water rate utility increase
	69 ord 17-11 water utility rate increase
	70 ord 17-11 water rate increase attachments
	71 fact sheet ord 17-12 refuse utility rate
	72 ord 17-12 refuse fee rate
	74 city managers report 20170227
	75 feb calender
	76 mar 2017
	78 Contract Approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – FEBRUARY 27, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Finance
	Varies
	Robert A. Schuerger Co., LPA
	Collection Efforts

	Public Utilities
	$8,390
	Burgess & Niple
	Curve Rd. Landfill Leachate Collection Equipment

	Public Utilities
	$57,480
	Burgess & Niple
	Curve Rd. Groundwater, Leachate and Explosive Gas Monitoring

	Public Utilities
	$57,480
	Burgess & Niple
	Cherry St. Groundwater, Leachate and Explosive Gas Monitoring

	Public Works
	$42,870
	Contract Sweepers and Equipment
	2017 Street Sweeping

	Public Utilities
	$42,000
	Burgess & Niple
	Design of Dogwood Dr. Stormwater Culvert

	Public Works
	$1,500
	MOU- Bilbaran Farms
	Public Dumpster Placement

	Public Works
	$1,500
	MOU-Genti Koci
	Public Dumpster Placement

	Public Works
	$1.00
	Francis and Mary Lou Wilgus
	Maintenance Agreement

	Public Utilities
	$15,000
	H.J. Umbaugh & Associates
	Stormwater Rate Study

	Public Utilities
	$8,600
	Burgess & Niple
	Development of mapping of lead water service line for OEPA

	Public Utilities
	$37,500
	Burgess & Niple
	Design of Stratford Rd Culvert Energy Dissipation Structure

	Fire Depart
	$46,800
	SourcePoint
	Renew agreement to provide service coordination to older adults in Del County

	Public Works
	$1.00
	Wayne Fischer
	Maintenance Agreement

	Fire Depart
	$35,000
	Hamburg Fireworks Display, Inc.
	July 4th Fireworks

	Public Works
	N/A
	Sims Bros. Inc
	Recyclables Services


	79 fire report

